COSTAR GROUP INC Form 424B2

May 23, 2011

This preliminary prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus relate to an effective registration statement under the Securities Act of 1933, but this preliminary prospectus supplement is not complete and may be changed. This preliminary prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus are not an offer to sell these securities and are not soliciting an offer to buy these securities in any jurisdiction where the offer or sale is not permitted.

Filed Pursuant to Rule 424(b)(2) Registration No. 333-[174407]

Subject to completion, dated May 23, 2011

Preliminary prospectus supplement To prospectus dated May 23, 2011

3,750,000 shares

CoStar Group, Inc.

Common stock

We are offering 3,750,000 shares of our common stock, \$0.01 par value per share.

Our common stock is listed on the Nasdaq Global Select Market under the symbol CSGP. The last reported sale price of our common stock on the Nasdaq Global Select Market on May 18, 2011 was \$68.58 per share. You are urged to obtain current market data and should not use the market price as of May 18, 2011 as a prediction of the future market price of our common stock.

| | Per share | | Total |
|--|-----------|----|-------|
| Public offering price | \$ | \$ | |
| Underwriting discounts and commissions | \$ | \$ | |
| Proceeds, before expenses, to us | \$ | \$ | |

We have granted the underwriters an option for a period of 30 days from the date of this prospectus supplement to purchase up to 562,500 additional shares of common stock from us. If the underwriters exercise this option in full, the total underwriting discounts and commissions will be \$ and total proceeds, before expenses, to us will be \$.

Investing in our common stock involves risks. See Risk factors beginning on page S-8 of this prospectus supplement. You should also consider the risk factors described in the documents incorporated by reference into this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of the securities or passed upon the accuracy or adequacy of this prospectus supplement or the accompanying prospectus. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

The underwriters expect to deliver the shares of our common stock to purchasers on June , 2011.

J.P. Morgan

Needham & Company, LLC Stephens Inc. William Blair & Company JMP Securities

The date of this prospectus supplement is May , 2011.

Table of contents

Prospectus supplement

| About this prospectus supplement | S-ii |
|--|-------|
| Cautionary statements regarding forward-looking statements | S-iii |
| Market, ranking and other data | S-vi |
| <u>Summary</u> | S-1 |
| The offering | S-6 |
| Risk factors | S-8 |
| Use of proceeds | S-24 |
| Selected historical consolidated financial and operating data of the Company | S-25 |
| Selected unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial data | S-27 |
| Comparative historical and unaudited pro forma per share data | S-29 |
| Unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial data of the Company and LoopNet | S-31 |
| Director and officer stock ownership information | S-43 |
| Price range of our common stock and dividends | S-45 |
| Underwriting | S-46 |
| Certain United States federal income tax considerations | S-51 |
| Validity of the common stock | S-57 |
| <u>Experts</u> | S-57 |
| Where you can find additional information | S-57 |
| Incorporation by reference | S-58 |
| Prospectus | |
| | |
| | Page |
| About This Prospectus | 1 |
| Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Statements | 1 |
| Where You Can Find Additional Information | 3 |
| Incorporation by Reference | 3 |
| Our Company | 4 |
| Use of Proceeds | 4 |
| Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges | 5 |
| Description of Debt Securities | 5 |
| Description of Common Stock | 13 |
| Description of Preferred Stock | 16 |
| Description of Other Securities | 16 |
| Plan of Distribution | 16 |
| Experts | 16 |
| Validity of the Securities | 16 |

You should rely only on the information contained in or incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus or that is contained in any free writing prospectus issued by us. We have not, and the underwriters have not, authorized any other person to provide you with different information. If anyone provides you with different or inconsistent information, you should not rely on it. We are not, and the underwriters are not, making an offer to sell the common stock in any jurisdiction where the offer or sale is not permitted. You should assume that

the information appearing in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus and in the documents incorporated by reference herein and therein or that is contained in any free writing prospectus issued by us is accurate only as of their respective dates. Our business, financial condition, results of operation and prospects may have changed since those dates.

About this prospectus supplement

We provide information to you about the common stock in two separate documents: (1) this prospectus supplement, which describes the specific terms of the common stock and also adds to and updates information contained in the accompanying prospectus and the documents incorporated by reference in that prospectus and (2) the accompanying prospectus, which provides general information about securities we may offer from time to time, including securities other than the common stock being offered by this prospectus supplement. If information in this prospectus supplement is inconsistent with the accompanying prospectus, you should rely on this prospectus supplement.

It is important for you to read and consider all of the information contained in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus in making your investment decision. You also should read and consider the information in the documents we have referred you to in Where you can find additional information on page S-57 of this prospectus supplement and page 3 of the accompanying prospectus.

We include cross-references in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus to captions in these materials where you can find additional related discussions. The table of contents in this prospectus supplement provides the pages on which these captions are located.

Unless otherwise indicated or the context otherwise requires, references in this prospectus supplement to Company, we, us or our are to CoStar Group, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries, and CoStar refers to CoStar Group, Inc., a Delaware corporation. Unless otherwise indicated or the context otherwise requires, references in this prospectus supplement to LoopNet are to LoopNet, Inc., a Delaware corporation, and its consolidated subsidiaries, and the acquisition refers to our proposed acquisition of LoopNet.

S-ii

Cautionary statements regarding forward-looking statements

Certain parts of this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus and the documents incorporated by reference herein and in the accompanying prospectus, contain forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the Securities Act) and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the Exchange Act). Forward-looking statements include information that is not purely historic fact and include, without limitation, statements concerning our financial outlook for 2011 and beyond, our possible or assumed future results of operations generally, and other statements and information regarding assumptions about our revenues, EBITDA, adjusted EBITDA, non-GAAP net income, non-GAAP net income per share, fully diluted net income, combined financial metrics related to the acquisition, taxable income, cash flow from operating activities, available cash, operating costs, amortization expense, intangible asset recovery, net income per share, diluted net income per share, weighted-average outstanding shares, capital and other expenditures, effective tax rate, equity compensation charges, future taxable income, purchase amortization, financing plans, geographic expansion, acquisitions, contract renewal rate, capital structure, contractual obligations, legal proceedings and claims, our database, database growth, services and facilities, employee relations, future economic performance, our ability to liquidate or realize our long-term investments, management s plans, goals and objectives for future operations, and growth and markets for our stock.

Our forward-looking statements are also identified by words such as believes, expects, thinks, anticipates, intends estimates, potential or similar expressions. You should understand that these forward-looking statements are estimates reflecting our judgment, beliefs and expectations, not guarantees of future performance. They are subject to a number of assumptions, risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those expressed or implied in the forward-looking statements. The following important factors, in addition to those discussed or referred to under the heading Risk factors, and other unforeseen events or circumstances, could affect our future results and could cause those results or other outcomes to differ materially from those expressed or implied in our forward-looking statements:

commercial real estate market conditions;

general economic and political conditions, natural disasters, health concerns, and technological developments;

volatility in the stock markets;

the financial performance of each of CoStar and LoopNet through the completion of the acquisition;

the possibility that the expected synergies from the acquisition will not be realized, or will not be realized within the anticipated time period or that the businesses will not be integrated successfully;

the possibility that the businesses of CoStar and LoopNet may not be combined successfully or in a timely and cost-efficient manner;

S-iii

the possibility that the acquisition does not close, including, but not limited to, due to the failure to obtain approval of LoopNet s stockholders or the failure to obtain governmental approvals; the possibility that business disruption relating to the acquisition may be greater than expected; failure to obtain any required financing for the acquisition on favorable terms; changes or consolidations within the commercial real estate industry; our ability to retain customers; our ability to attract new clients; our ability to sell additional services to existing clients; our ability to integrate our U.S. and international product offerings; competition from products and services offered by our competitors; foreign currency fluctuations; our ability to obtain any required financing on favorable terms; global credit market conditions affecting investments; our ability to continue to expand successfully; our ability to effectively penetrate the market for retail real estate information and gain acceptance in that market; our ability to control costs; litigation; changes in accounting policies or practices; release of new and upgraded services by us or our competitors; data quality; development of our sales force; employee retention; technical problems with our services; managerial execution;

changes in relationships with real estate brokers and other strategic partners;

legal and regulatory issues; and

successful adoption of and training on our services.

Accordingly, you should not place undue reliance on forward-looking statements, which speak only as of, and are based on information available to us on, the date of the applicable document. All subsequent written and oral forward-looking statements attributable to us or any

S-iv

person acting on our behalf are expressly qualified in their entirety by the cautionary statements contained or referred to in this section. We do not undertake any obligation to update any such statements or release publicly any revisions to these forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date of this prospectus supplement or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events.

Forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance. They involve risks, uncertainties and assumptions, including the risk factors referred to above. Our future performance and actual results may differ materially from those expressed in forward-looking statements. Many of the factors that will determine these results are beyond our ability to control or predict. Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date that they are made, and we undertake no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.

S-v

Market, ranking and other data

In this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus and in the documents incorporated by reference herein and therein, we refer to information regarding market position obtained from internal sources and publicly available information. This information is inherently uncertain, involves risks and uncertainties and is subject to change based on various factors, including those discussed under the caption Risk factors in this prospectus supplement.

S-vi

Summary

The following summary should be read together with the information contained in other parts of this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus or incorporated by reference herein or therein. This summary highlights selected information from this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus regarding the offering of the shares of common stock. You should read this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus, including the documents we incorporate by reference, carefully to understand fully the terms of the offering as well as other considerations that are important to you in making a decision to invest in the shares. You should pay special attention to the Risk factors section beginning on page S-8 of this prospectus supplement, and the Risk Factors sections in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010 and in our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2011 to determine whether an investment in the shares is appropriate for you. This prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus include and incorporate forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties.

Our company

We are a leading provider of information and analytic services to the commercial real estate industry in the United States, United Kingdom and parts of France. Since our founding in 1987, we have provided commercial real estate professionals with critical knowledge. We provide value to our clients by supplying proprietary data that, combined with our analytic methods, creates essential decision-making support tools for professionals in the commercial real estate industry, which is estimated to be valued at \$11 trillion according to Ruijue Peng et al., A Comprehensive Approach to Commercial Real Estate Prices, ARES 2010.

We offer an efficient platform for commercial real estate professionals to exchange information, evaluate opportunities using standardized and accurate information, and interact with each other on a continuous basis. Our data and analytics solutions have been developed through substantial investment over 24 years and are deeply embedded within our clients—workflow as demonstrated by our long-term client relationships and high renewal rates. The contract renewal rate during the quarter ended March 31, 2011 for subscription-based services for U.S. clients that have been customers for five years or longer was 98%.

Our services are derived from our proprietary database of building-specific information and offer customers specialized tools for accessing, analyzing and using our information. CoStar Property Professional® is our flagship service and provides subscribers a comprehensive inventory of office, industrial, retail and multifamily properties and land in markets throughout the U.S., including for-lease and for-sale listings, historical data, building photographs, maps and floor plans. Our other services are marketed under various names and provide a wide range of additional data and analytics for commercial real estate professionals and others with commercial real estate information needs. We offer the most comprehensive commercial real estate database in the industry and have the largest research department in the industry.

We deliver our data and analytics solutions to our clients primarily via a branded integrated suite of online service offerings. As of January 31, 2011, our database of real estate information contained:

Approximately 1.5 million sale and lease listings;

Approximately 4 million total properties;

Approximately 11 billion square feet of sale and lease listings;

Approximately 9 million tenants;

Approximately 2 million sales transactions valued in the aggregate at approximately \$3.7 trillion; and

Approximately 11 million digital attachments, including building photographs, aerial photographs, plat maps and floor plans.

This highly complex database is comprised of hundreds of data fields, tracking critical categories such as:

LocationTax assessmentsFor-sale informationLease expirationsSales and lease comparablesOwnership

Space availability

Quoted rental rates

Site and zoning information

Building characteristics

Income and expense histories

Contact information

Historical trends

Space requirements

Demographic information

Number of retail stores

Tenant names Mortgage and deed information

We offer our services and solutions primarily through annual subscriptions that renew automatically, which represented over 94% of our revenues for the twelve months ended March 31, 2011.

The CoStar opportunity

The commercial real estate and related business community generally has operated in an inefficient marketplace due to the fragmented approach to gathering and exchanging information. Each commercial real estate transaction has numerous participants and information requirements. As such, each constituent must have extensive, accurate and current information and analysis across a variety of data points, including space availability, properties for sale, rental rates, vacancy rates, tenant movements, sales comparables, supply, new construction and absorption rates.

Various organizations, including hundreds of brokerage firms, directory publishers, the government and local research companies, collect commercial real estate data on specific markets and develop software to analyze the information they have independently gathered. This highly fragmented methodology has resulted in duplication of effort in collecting and analyzing information, excessive internal cost and the creation of non-standardized data containing varying degrees of accuracy and comprehensiveness, resulting in a formidable information gap.

Our suite of service offerings supported by the most comprehensive database in the industry, the largest research department in the industry, approximately 900 research professionals and outside contractors who make thousands of daily database updates, in-house product developers and a team of analysts and economists helps our clients make critical business decisions in a more efficient and cost-effective manner. As a result, many of the key players in the commercial real estate industry rely on us to help them make better decisions faster and create value for their businesses.

We believe many companies, including our clients, are looking for real-time access to more granular levels of data and analytics to understand opportunities more quickly and precisely. This has resulted in a large and growing market for commercial real estate information based on the variety, volume and value of transactions in the industry. We believe the significant economic and competitive trends facing our clients provide a competitive advantage to our business and will enable us to capture a greater share of our significant market opportunity going forward.

Our competitive strengths

We believe our competitive strengths include:

Mission critical information and analytics. Our solutions are deeply embedded in our clients workflows. We provide a breadth of information and insights for commercial real estate professionals in the United States, the United Kingdom and parts of France. We combine our superior information and our deep knowledge of our customers workflows with the latest innovative decision-support tools and technologies to enhance our clients efficiency and increase productivity. In the U.S. commercial real estate industry, our solutions are a utility for our customers. For example, our 12-month trailing renewal rate at March 31, 2011 was 92%, which we believe reflects our customers recognition of the reliability and comprehensiveness of our services and the high value they derive from our solutions.

Strong, diversified client relationships. We maintain long-standing relationships across the commercial real estate and business communities, with commercial real estate brokers, building owners, landlords, financial institutions, retailers, vendors, appraisers, investment banks, governmental agencies and other parties involved in commercial real estate. We have more than 17,000 subscription client sites, with no single client accounting for more than 5% of our total 2010 revenues. The depth of our client relationships provides a foundation for recurring revenues as well as a platform for growth as we continue to expand our portfolio of solutions.

Deep expertise. We maintain what we believe is the largest, most accurate, and most comprehensive commercial real estate database in the industry. We gather information through public and private sources and combine it with our proprietary content, our extensive industry insight and our analytics. We have invested approximately \$1 billion to build our platform with the object of creating the commercial real estate industry s most comprehensive source of information and analytic services. We believe our expertise, years of significant investment and comprehensive data assets and decision-support tools provide us with a competitive advantage in serving our clients.

Culture of innovation. Our continued focus on innovation has allowed us to develop solutions that assist our customers in obtaining critical knowledge to explore and complete real estate transactions. Our team includes approximately 900 research professionals and approximately 150 product development and database professionals who work together to help ensure the accuracy of our information, enhance our data and analytics offerings and create new, innovative solutions that can be sold across our client base.

Scalable operating model. We believe we have a scalable operating model due to the recurring nature of our revenues, the scalability of our solutions and the low capital intensity of our business.

Our growth strategy

We believe we are well-positioned for growth. We intend to build on our position as a leading provider of mission-critical commercial real estate information, decision-support tools and related services by executing the following strategies:

Attract new clients and expand existing relationships. We intend to continue to work closely with our clients to understand their evolving needs and more deeply embed our offerings into their workflows. We believe that substantial opportunities exist both to attract new clients and to increase our revenue from existing clients. Building on our deep knowledge and the embedded position of our offerings, we expect to sell new and innovative solutions to our new and existing clients, increasing our importance to their decision-making processes.

Enhance our proprietary data and analytics. We plan to continue to augment our comprehensive collection of proprietary information by enhancing our data collection tools and processes, further strengthening our relationships with content providers and building new, sophisticated decision-support tools, including an expanded analytic offering that is expected to provide powerful capabilities for analyzing and forecasting investment and leasing trends in local markets. We also plan to continue to selectively acquire assets that enhance our services and geographic scope and strengthen our value proposition to our clients.

Leverage operating model. We derive over 94% of our revenue from annual subscription fees, while a large portion of our costs are fixed. As a result, we believe we can improve our operating margins by generating additional revenue as we further penetrate our existing customer base and add new customers.

Integrate LoopNet. As described below under Our proposed acquisition of LoopNet, we announced our entry into a definitive agreement to acquire LoopNet on April 27, 2011. LoopNet owns and operates an online marketplace for commercial real estate that enables commercial real estate agents, working on behalf of property owners and landlords, to list properties for sale or for lease and submit detailed information on property listings in order to find a buyer or tenant in the United States. We believe that by integrating LoopNet within our business, we will be able to deliver a higher quality marketing solution to LoopNet s customers and a higher quality information solution to CoStar s customers. We believe the combined company will be the premier online resource for researching, analyzing and marketing commercial real estate properties, and the combination of the two companies complementary services is expected to position the combined firm to provide even more comprehensive market coverage, deliver enhanced research, analysis and marketing options, and offer greater efficiencies for customers throughout the commercial real estate industry, ranging from large, national brokerage and institutional market players to small, local brokers and owners.

Our proposed acquisition of LoopNet

On April 27, 2011, we signed a definitive agreement to acquire LoopNet, Inc. (NASDAQ: LOOP), a leading online commercial real estate marketplace. Pursuant to the merger agreement, LoopNet stockholders will receive \$16.50 in cash and 0.03702 shares of CoStar common stock for each share of LoopNet common stock, representing a total equity value of approximately \$860.0 million and an enterprise value of \$762.0 million. The boards of directors of both

companies have unanimously approved the acquisition, which is expected to close by the end of 2011. We have received a commitment letter from JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. for a fully committed term loan of \$415.0 million and a \$50.0 million revolving credit facility, of which \$37.5 million is committed, which will be available, subject to customary conditions, to fund the acquisition and our ongoing working capital needs following the acquisition. We refer to this term loan and revolving credit facility as the proposed credit facilities. If we consummate the acquisition using the net proceeds of this offering, we may correspondingly reduce the amount drawn under the term loan portion of the proposed credit facilities on the closing date of the acquisition. The acquisition is subject to customary closing conditions, including approval by the stockholders of LoopNet and certain governmental clearances or approvals, including expiration or termination of the applicable waiting period relating to the acquisition under the HSR Act. The acquisition is not subject to a financing condition. In certain circumstances set forth in the merger agreement, if the acquisition is not consummated or the agreement is terminated, LoopNet may be obligated to pay us a termination fee of \$25.8 million. Similarly, in certain circumstances set forth in the merger agreement, if the acquisition is not consummated or the agreement is terminated, we may be obligated to pay LoopNet a termination fee of \$51.6 million. This offering is not conditioned on the closing of the acquisition and there can be no assurance that the acquisition will be completed. The shares offered hereby will remain outstanding whether or not the acquisition is completed.

In light of our agreement to acquire LoopNet, we are currently evaluating how best to integrate the two businesses, and we expect that while we await final approval of the acquisition over the course of the coming months we will assess and finalize plans for additional investments in our business. At this time we intend to continue to develop and distribute new services within our current platform. For example, we expect to roll out an iPad application later this year. We also expect to continue our efforts to integrate the combined capabilities of CoStar s market and property information and Property and Portfolio Research Ltd. s analytics and forecasting expertise with Resolve Technology, Inc. s real estate investment software expertise. Pending the completion of the acquisition, we do not currently anticipate making any additional material acquisitions.

While we expect current service offerings to remain profitable, driving overall earnings during 2011 and providing substantial cash flow for our business, the acquisition and the eventual integration of our two businesses could reduce our profitability, cause us to generate losses and adversely affect our financial position. Further, we intend to enter into the proposed credit facilities if the acquisition is completed, which facilities we expect will contain covenants that will restrict our operations and use of our cash flow.

The offering

The following summary contains basic information about this offering. This summary is not intended to be complete. You should read the full text and more specific details contained elsewhere in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus. For a more complete description of the shares of common stock, see Description of Common Stock beginning on page 13 of the accompanying prospectus.

Issuer CoStar Group, Inc., a Delaware corporation.

Common stock offered 3,750,000 shares. We have also granted the underwriters a 30-day option to purchase

up to 562,500 additional shares.

Common stock to be outstanding immediately following this offering

24.722.131 shares (or 25.284.631 shares if the underwriters exercise their over-allotment option in full) (based on shares outstanding on May 18, 2011).

Use of proceeds We estimate that the net proceeds from this offering will be approximately \$

> approximately \$ if the underwriters exercise their over-allotment option in full) after deducting underwriting discounts and commissions. We expect to use the net proceeds from the sale of the shares to fund a portion of the cash consideration payable in connection with the acquisition and, to the extent that any proceeds remain thereafter, or the acquisition is not completed, for general corporate purposes. This offering is not conditioned on the closing of the acquisition and there can be no assurance that the acquisition will be completed. The shares offered hereby will remain outstanding whether or not the acquisition is completed. See Use of proceeds.

Trading symbol for our common stock

Our common stock is listed on the Nasdaq Global Select Market under the symbol

CSGP.

tax considerations

United States federal income For a discussion of certain United States federal income tax consequences of holding and disposing of shares of our common stock, see Certain United States federal income

tax considerations.

Risk factors You should carefully consider the information set forth in the section of this prospectus

> supplement entitled Risk factors as well as the other information included in or incorporated by reference into this prospectus supplement before deciding whether to

invest in the shares.

S-6

Except as otherwise indicated, all information in this prospectus supplement:

assumes that the underwriters will not exercise their option to purchase up to 562,500 additional shares from the Company;

excludes 2,250,000 shares representing the maximum number of shares issuable upon consummation of the acquisition;

excludes 950,425 shares issuable upon the exercise of options outstanding as of May 18, 2011 with a weighted average exercise price of \$38.39 per share;

excludes an estimated 61,765 shares available for purchase under our Employee Stock Purchase Plan as of May 18, 2011; and

excludes an estimated 1,346,659 shares reserved for issuance pursuant to future grants of awards under our 2007 Stock Incentive Plan as of May 18, 2011.

S-7

Risk factors

Investing in our common stock involves risks, including the risks described below that are specific to shares of our common stock and those that could affect us and our business. You should not purchase shares of our common stock unless you understand these investment risks. Please be aware that other risks may prove to be important in the future. New risks may emerge at any time and we cannot predict such risks or estimate the extent to which they may affect our financial performance. Before purchasing any shares of our common stock, you should consider carefully the risks and other information in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus and the documents incorporated by reference herein and therein.

Risks relating to the proposed acquisition of LoopNet

This offering is not conditioned upon the closing of the acquisition and there can be no assurance that the acquisition will be completed.

In April 2011, we signed a definitive merger agreement under which we will acquire LoopNet in a stock and cash transaction. We expect the acquisition to close by the end of 2011, subject to customary closing conditions, including approval by the stockholders of LoopNet and certain governmental clearances and approvals, including expiration or termination of the applicable waiting period relating to the acquisition under the HSR Act. This offering is not conditioned on the closing of the acquisition and there can be no assurance that the acquisition will be completed. The shares offered hereby will remain outstanding whether or not the acquisition is completed.

The failure to successfully integrate LoopNet s business and operations or fully realize synergies from the acquisition in the expected time frame may adversely affect our future results.

The success of the acquisition will depend, in part, on our ability to successfully integrate LoopNet s business and operations and fully realize the anticipated benefits and synergies from combining our business with LoopNet s business. However, to realize these anticipated benefits and synergies, we must successfully combine these businesses. If we are unable to achieve these objectives following the acquisition, the anticipated benefits and synergies of the acquisition may not be realized fully or at all or may take longer to realize than expected. Any failure to timely realize these anticipated benefits could have a material adverse effect on our revenues, expenses and operating results.

We and LoopNet have operated and, until the completion of the acquisition, will continue to operate independently. It is possible that the integration process could result in the loss of key employees, loss of key clients, decreases in revenues and increases in operating costs, as well as the disruption of each company s ongoing businesses, any or all of which could limit our ability to achieve the anticipated benefits and synergies of the acquisition and have a material adverse effect on our revenues and operating results. Integration efforts between the two companies will also divert management attention and resources, which could also adversely affect our operating results.

We and LoopNet may have difficulty attracting, motivating and retaining executives and other key employees in light of the acquisition.

Uncertainty about the effect of the acquisition on our and LoopNet s employees may have an adverse effect on us or LoopNet and consequently the combined business resulting from the acquisition. This uncertainty may impair our and LoopNet s ability to attract, retain and motivate key personnel until the acquisition is completed, or longer for the combined entity. Employee retention may be particularly challenging during the pendency of the acquisition, as our and LoopNet s employees may experience uncertainty about their future roles with the combined business. Additionally, LoopNet s officers and employees may own shares of LoopNet s common stock and/or have stock option or restricted stock unit grants and, if the acquisition is completed, may therefore be entitled to the acquisition consideration, the payment of which could provide sufficient financial incentive for certain officers and employees to no longer pursue employment with the combined business. If key employees of us or LoopNet depart because of issues relating to the uncertainty and difficulty of integration, financial incentives or a desire not to become employees of the combined business, we may have to incur significant costs in identifying, hiring and retaining replacements for departing employees, which could reduce our ability to realize the anticipated benefits of the acquisition.

In order to complete the acquisition, we and LoopNet must obtain certain governmental approvals, and if such approvals are not granted or are granted with conditions that become applicable to the parties, the completion of the acquisition may be jeopardized or the anticipated benefits of the acquisition could be reduced.

Completion of the acquisition is conditioned upon the receipt of certain governmental clearances or approvals, including, but not limited to, the expiration or termination of the applicable waiting period, or receipt of approval, under applicable antitrust laws, including the applicable waiting periods under the HSR Act. Although we and LoopNet have agreed to use reasonable best efforts to obtain the requisite governmental approvals, we cannot assure you that these approvals will be obtained or, if obtained, when. In addition, the governmental authorities from which these approvals are required have broad discretion in administering the governing regulations. On May 20, 2011, one of these governmental authorities, the Federal Trade Commission, requested that we provide documents and information to assist it in the conduct of its investigation of the acquisition. As a condition to approval of the acquisition, these governmental authorities may impose requirements, limitations or costs or require divestitures or place restrictions on the conduct of our or LoopNet s business after the completion of the acquisition. Under the terms of the merger agreement, we are not required to complete the acquisition if, among other things, the governmental approvals required to be received in connection with the acquisition include any conditions or restrictions that, individually or in the aggregate, are reasonably expected to impose a substantial detriment (as specified in the merger agreement) on us, though we can choose to waive this condition. If either we or LoopNet become subject to any term, condition, obligation or restriction (whether by consent or because the terms of the merger agreement require it), the imposition of such term, condition, obligation or restriction could adversely affect the ability to integrate LoopNet s operations into our operations, reduce the anticipated benefits of the acquisition or otherwise materially adversely affect our business and results of operations after the completion of the acquisition.

Our and LoopNet s business relationships, including client relationships, may be subject to disruption due to uncertainty associated with the acquisition.

Parties with which we or LoopNet do business may experience uncertainty associated with the acquisition, including with respect to current or future business relationships with us, LoopNet or the combined business. Our and LoopNet s business relationships may be subject to disruption as clients and others may attempt to negotiate changes in existing business relationships or consider entering into business relationships with parties other than us, LoopNet or the combined business. These disruptions could have a material adverse effect on the businesses, financial condition and results of operations of the combined business. The adverse effect of such disruptions could be exacerbated by a delay in the completion of the acquisition or termination of the merger agreement.

The merger agreement may be terminated in accordance with its terms and the acquisition may not be completed.

The merger agreement is subject to a number of conditions which must be fulfilled in order to complete the acquisition. Those conditions include: adoption of the merger agreement by LoopNet stockholders, the receipt of necessary antitrust approvals, absence of orders prohibiting the completion of the acquisition, effectiveness of a registration statement with respect to our stock to be issued in the acquisition, continued accuracy of the representations and warranties by both parties and the performance by both parties of their covenants and agreements.

In addition, both we and LoopNet have rights to terminate the merger agreement under certain circumstances specified in the merger agreement.

We will incur significant transaction costs as a result of the acquisition.

We expect to incur significant one-time transaction costs related to the acquisition. These transaction costs include investment banking, legal and accounting fees and expenses and filing fees, printing expenses and other related charges. The companies may also incur additional unanticipated transaction costs in connection with the acquisition. A portion of the transaction costs related to the acquisition will be incurred regardless of whether the acquisition is completed. Additional costs will be incurred in connection with integrating the two companies businesses, such as severance and information technology integration expenses. Costs in connection with the acquisition and integration may be higher than expected. These costs could adversely affect the financial condition and results of operations of CoStar or the combined business.

An adverse judgment in a lawsuit challenging the acquisition may prevent the acquisition from becoming effective or from becoming effective within the expected timeframe.

One of the conditions to the closing of the acquisition is that no order, injunction or decree or other legal restraint or prohibition that prevents the completion of the acquisition be in effect. If any plaintiff were successful in obtaining an injunction prohibiting LoopNet or us from completing the acquisition on the agreed-upon terms, then such injunction may prevent the acquisition from becoming effective or from becoming effective within the expected timeframe. To date, LoopNet, LoopNet s board of directors and/or CoStar are named as defendants in two purported class action lawsuits brought by alleged LoopNet stockholders challenging the acquisition. Such stockholder actions allege, among other things, that (i) each member of

LoopNet s board of directors breached his fiduciary duties to LoopNet and its stockholders in authorizing the acquisition, (ii) the acquisition does not maximize value to LoopNet s stockholders and (iii) LoopNet and CoStar aided and abetted the breaches of fiduciary duty allegedly committed by the members of LoopNet s board of directors. Such stockholder actions seek class action certification and equitable relief, including an injunction against consummation of the acquisition.

Failure to complete the acquisition in certain circumstances could require us to pay a termination fee or expenses.

If the merger agreement is terminated under certain circumstances, we would be obligated to pay a \$51.6 million termination fee. Payment of the termination fee could materially adversely affect our results of operations or financial condition.

Risks relating to LoopNet

LoopNet is, and following completion of the acquisition, we and LoopNet will continue to be, subject to the risks with respect to LoopNet described in our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 23, 2011, incorporated by reference into this prospectus supplement. You should read and consider these additional risk factors associated with the business of LoopNet because these risk factors may affect the operations and financial results of the combined company. See Where you can find additional information beginning on page S-57 of this prospectus supplement.

Risks relating to our business

A downturn or consolidation in the commercial real estate industry may decrease customer demand for our services.

A reversal of recent improvements in the commercial real estate industry s leasing activity and absorption rates or a renewed downturn in the commercial real estate market may affect our ability to generate revenues and may lead to more cancellations by our current or future customers, either of which could cause our revenues or our revenue growth rate to decline and reduce our profitability. A depressed commercial real estate market has a negative impact on our core customer base, which could decrease demand for our information, marketing and analytic services. Also, companies in this industry are consolidating, often in order to reduce expenses. Consolidation, or other cost-cutting measures by our customers, may lead to more cancellations of our information, marketing and analytic services by our customers, reduce the number of our existing clients, reduce the size of our target market or increase our clients bargaining power, all of which could cause our revenues to decline and reduce our profitability.

Negative general economic conditions could increase our expenses and reduce our revenues.

Our business and the commercial real estate industry are particularly affected by negative trends in the general economy. The success of our business depends on a number of factors relating to general global, national, regional and local economic conditions, including perceived and actual economic conditions, recessions, inflation, deflation, exchange rates, interest rates, taxation policies, availability of credit, employment levels, and wage and salary levels. Negative general economic conditions could adversely affect our business by reducing our revenues and profitability. If we experience greater cancellations or reductions of services and failures to timely pay,

and we do not acquire new clients or sell new services to our existing clients, our revenues may decline and our financial position would be adversely affected. Adverse national and global economic events, as well as any significant terrorist attack, are likely to have a dampening effect on the economy in general, which could negatively affect our financial performance and our stock price. Market disruptions may also contribute to extreme price and volume fluctuations in the stock market that may affect our stock price for reasons unrelated to our operating performance. In addition, a significant increase in inflation could increase our expenses more rapidly than expected, the effect of which may not be offset by corresponding increases in revenue. Conversely, deflation resulting in a decline of prices could reduce our revenues. In the current economic environment, it is difficult to predict whether we will experience significant inflation or deflation in the near future. A significant increase in either could have an adverse effect on our results of operations.

Our revenues and financial position will be adversely affected if we are not able to attract and retain clients.

Our success and revenues depend on attracting and retaining subscribers to our information, marketing and analytic services. Our subscription-based information, marketing and analytic services generate the largest portion of our revenues. However, we may be unable to attract new clients, and our existing clients may decide not to add, not to renew or to cancel subscription services. In addition, in order to increase our revenue, we must continue to attract new customers, continue to keep our cancellation rate low and continue to sell new services to our existing customers. We may not be able to continue to grow our customer base, keep the cancellation rate for customers and services low or sell new services to existing customers as a result of several factors, including, without limitation: economic pressures, a decision that customers have no need for our services; a decision to use alternative services; customers—and potential customers—pricing and budgetary constraints; consolidation in the real estate and/or financial services industries; data quality; technical problems; or competitive pressures. If clients decide to cancel services or not to renew their subscription agreements, and we do not sell new services to our existing clients or attract new clients, then our renewal rate and revenues may decline.

If we are not able to successfully identify, finance and/or integrate acquisitions, our business operations and financial position could be adversely affected.

We have expanded our markets and services in part through acquisitions of complementary businesses, services, databases and technologies, and expect to continue to do so in the future. Our strategy to acquire complementary companies or assets depends on our ability to identify, and the availability of, suitable acquisition candidates. We may incur costs in the preliminary stages of an acquisition, but may ultimately be unable or unwilling to consummate the proposed transaction for various reasons. In addition, acquisitions involve numerous risks, including the ability to realize or capitalize on synergy created through combinations; managing the integration of personnel and products; managing geographically remote operations, such as SPN in Scotland, Grecam S.A.S. in France, CoStar U.K. Limited, Propex and Property and Portfolio Research Ltd. in the U.K.; the diversion of management s attention from other business concerns; the inherent risks in entering markets and sectors in which we have either limited or no direct experience; and the potential loss of key employees or clients of the acquired companies. We may not successfully integrate acquired businesses or assets and may not achieve anticipated benefits of an acquisition, including expected synergy. Acquisitions could result in dilutive

issuances of equity securities, the incurrence of debt, one-time write-offs of goodwill and substantial amortization expenses of other intangible assets. We may be unable to obtain financing on favorable terms, or at all, if necessary to finance future acquisitions making it impossible or more costly to acquire complementary businesses. If we are able to obtain financing, the terms may be onerous and restrict our operations.

If we are unable to hire qualified persons for, or retain and continue to develop, our sales force, or if our sales force is unproductive, our revenues could be adversely affected.

In order to support revenues and future revenue growth, we need to continue to develop, train and retain our sales force. Our ability to build and develop a strong sales force may be affected by a number of factors, including, without limitation: our ability to attract, integrate and motivate sales personnel; our ability to effectively train our sales force; the ability of our sales force to sell an increased number of services; our ability to manage effectively an outbound telesales group; the length of time it takes new sales personnel to become productive; the competition we face from other companies in hiring and retaining sales personnel; and our ability to effectively manage a multi-location sales organization. If we are unable to hire qualified sales personnel and develop and retain the members of our sales force, including sales force management, or if our sales force is unproductive, our revenues or growth rate could decline and our expenses could increase.

Competition could render our services uncompetitive.

The market for information systems and services in general is highly competitive and rapidly changing. Competition in this market may increase further as a result of current recessionary economic conditions, as customer bases and customer spending have decreased and service providers are competing for fewer customer resources. Our existing competitors, or future competitors, may have greater name recognition, larger customer bases, better technology or data, lower prices, easier access to data, greater user traffic or greater financial, technical or marketing resources than we have. Our competitors may be able to undertake more effective marketing campaigns, obtain more data, adopt more aggressive pricing policies, make more attractive offers to potential employees, subscribers, distribution partners and content providers or may be able to respond more quickly to new or emerging technologies or changes in user requirements. If we are unable to retain customers or obtain new customers, our revenues could decline. Increased competition could result in lower revenues and higher expenses, which would reduce our profitability.

If we are unable to increase our revenues or our operating costs are higher than expected, our profitability may continue to decline and our operating results may fluctuate significantly.

We may not be able to accurately forecast our revenues or future revenue growth rate. Many of our expenses, particularly personnel costs and occupancy costs, are relatively fixed. As a result, we may not be able to adjust spending quickly enough to offset any unexpected increase in expenses or revenue shortfall. We may experience higher than expected operating costs, including, without limitation, increased personnel costs, occupancy costs, selling and marketing costs, investments in geographic expansion, acquisition costs, communications costs, travel costs, software development costs, professional fees and other costs. If operating costs exceed our expectations and cannot be adjusted accordingly, our profitability may be reduced and our results of operations and financial position will be adversely affected. Additionally, we may not

be able to sustain our historic revenue growth rates, and our percentage revenue growth rates may decline. Our ability to increase our revenues and operating profit will depend on increased demand for our services. Our sales are affected by, among other things, general economic and commercial real estate conditions. Reduced demand, whether due to changes in customer preference, a further weakening of the U.S. or global economy, competition or other reasons, may result in decreased revenue and growth, adversely affecting our operating results.

We intend to enter into the proposed credit facilities, which we expect will contain covenants that will restrict our operations.

We have received a commitment letter from JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. for a fully committed term loan of \$415.0 million and a \$50.0 million revolving credit facility, of which \$37.5 million is committed, which will be available, subject to customary conditions, to fund the acquisition and our ongoing working capital needs following the acquisition.

We expect the credit agreement governing the proposed credit facilities to contain customary covenants imposing operating and financial restrictions on us, including restrictions that may limit our ability to engage in acts that may be in our long-term best interests. These covenants are likely to include, among others, limitations (and in some cases, prohibitions) that would, directly or indirectly, restrict our ability to:

incur liens or additional indebtedness (including guarantees or contingent obligations); engage in mergers and other fundamental changes; sell or otherwise dispose of property or assets; pay dividends and other distributions; and change the nature our business.

Any operating restrictions and financial covenants in such credit agreement and any other future financing agreements may limit our ability to finance future operations or capital needs or to engage in other business activities. Our ability to comply with any financial covenants could be materially affected by events beyond our control, and there can be no assurance that we will satisfy any such requirements. If we fail to comply with these covenants, we may need to seek waivers or amendments of such covenants, seek alternative or additional sources of financing or reduce our expenditures. We may be unable to obtain such waivers, amendments or alternative or additional financing on terms favorable to us or at all.

The credit agreement is expected to specify several events of default, including non-payment, certain cross-defaults, certain bankruptcy events, covenant or representation breaches and certain changes in control. If an event of default occurs, the lenders under the credit agreement are expected to be able to elect to declare all outstanding borrowings, together with accrued interest and other fees, to be immediately due and payable. We may not be able to repay all amounts due under the credit agreement in the event these amounts are declared due upon an event of default.

International operations expose us to additional business risks, which may reduce our profitability.

Our international operations and expansion subject us to additional business risks, including, without limitation: currency exchange rate fluctuations; adapting to the differing business practices and laws in foreign countries; difficulties in managing foreign operations; limited protection for intellectual property rights in some countries; difficulty in collecting accounts

receivable and longer collection periods; costs of enforcing contractual obligations; impact of recessions in economies outside the U.S.; and potentially adverse tax consequences. In addition, international expansion imposes additional burdens on our executive and administrative personnel, systems development, research and sales departments, and general managerial resources. If we are not able to manage our international operations successfully, we may incur higher expenses and our profitability may be reduced. Finally, the investment required for additional international expansion could exceed the profit generated from such expansion, which would reduce our profitability and adversely affect our financial position.

Fluctuating foreign currencies may negatively impact our business, results of operations and financial position.

Due to our acquisitions of CoStar U.K. Limited (formerly FOCUS Information Limited), SPN, Grecam S.A.S., Propex, and Property and Portfolio Research Ltd., a portion of our business is denominated in the British Pound and Euro and as a result, fluctuations in foreign currencies may have an impact on our business, results of operations and financial position. Foreign currency exchange rates have fluctuated and may continue to fluctuate. Significant foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations may negatively impact our international revenue, which in turn affects our consolidated revenue. Currencies may be affected by internal factors, general economic conditions and external developments in other countries, all of which can have an adverse impact on a country s currency. Currently, we are not party to any hedging transactions intended to reduce our exposure to exchange rate fluctuations. We may seek to enter into hedging transactions in the future, but we may be unable to enter into these transactions successfully, on acceptable terms or at all. We cannot predict whether we will incur foreign exchange losses in the future. Further, significant foreign exchange fluctuations resulting in a decline in the British Pound or Euro may decrease the value of our foreign assets, as well as decrease our revenues and earnings from our foreign subsidiaries, which would reduce our profitability and adversely affect our financial position.

Negative conditions in the global credit markets may affect the liquidity of a portion of our long-term investments.

Currently, our long-term investments include mostly AAA rated auction rate securities (ARS), which are primarily student loan securities supported by guarantees from the Federal Family Education Loan Program (FFELP) of the U.S. Department of Education. Continuing negative conditions in the global credit markets have prevented some investors from liquidating their holdings of auction rate securities because the amount of securities submitted for sale has exceeded the amount of purchase orders for such securities. As of March 31, 2011, we held \$32.1 million par value of ARS, all of which failed to settle at auctions. When an auction fails for ARS in which we have invested, we may be unable to liquidate some or all of these securities at par. In the event we need or desire to immediately access these funds, we will not be able to do so until a future auction on these investments is successful, a buyer is found outside the auction process or an alternative action is determined. If a buyer is found but is unwilling to purchase the investments at par, we may incur a loss, which would reduce our profitability and adversely affect our financial position.

Our ARS investments are not currently trading and therefore do not currently have a readily determinable market value. Accordingly, the estimated fair value of the ARS no longer approximates par value. We have used a discounted cash flow model to determine the estimated fair

value of our investment in ARS as of March 31, 2011. The assumptions used in preparing the discounted cash flow model include estimates for interest rates, credit spreads, timing and amount of cash flows, liquidity risk premiums, expected holding periods and default risk of the ARS. Based on this assessment of fair value, as of March 31, 2011, we determined there was a decline in the fair value of our ARS investments of approximately \$3.0 million. The decline was deemed to be a temporary impairment and was recorded as an unrealized loss in accumulated other comprehensive loss in stockholders—equity. If the issuers of these ARS are unable to successfully close future auctions and/or their credit ratings deteriorate, we may be required to record additional unrealized losses in accumulated other comprehensive loss or an other-than-temporary impairment charge to earnings on these investments, which would reduce our profitability and adversely affect our financial position.

We have not made any material changes in the accounting methodology used to determine the fair value of the ARS. We do not expect any material changes in the near term to the underlying assumptions used to determine the unobservable inputs used to calculate the fair value of the ARS as of March 31, 2011. However, if changes in these assumptions occur, and, should those changes be significant, we may be required to record additional unrealized losses in accumulated other comprehensive loss or an other-than-temporary impairment charge to earnings on these investments.

Our current or future geographic expansion plans may not result in increased revenues, which may negatively impact our business, results of operations and financial position.

Expanding into new markets and investing resources towards increasing the depth of our coverage within existing markets imposes additional burdens on our research, systems development, sales, marketing and general managerial resources. During 2011, we plan to continue to increase the depth of our coverage in the U.S., U.K. and France, and we may expand into additional geographies. If we are unable to manage our expansion efforts effectively, if our expansion efforts take longer than planned or if our costs for these efforts exceed our expectations, our financial position could be adversely affected. In addition, if we incur significant costs to improve data quality within existing markets, or are not successful in marketing and selling our services in these markets or in new markets, our expansion may have a material adverse effect on our financial position by increasing our expenses without increasing our revenues, adversely affecting our profitability.

We may be subject to legal liability for collecting, displaying or distributing information.

Because the content in our database is collected from various sources and distributed to others, we may be subject to claims for breach of contract, defamation, negligence, unfair competition or copyright or trademark infringement or claims based on other theories. We could also be subject to claims based upon the content that is accessible from our website through links to other websites or information on our website supplied by third parties. Even if these claims do not result in liability to us, we could incur significant costs in investigating and defending against any claims. Our potential liability for information distributed by us to others could require us to implement measures to reduce our exposure to such liability, which may require us to expend substantial resources and limit the attractiveness of our information, marketing and analytic services to users.

Litigation or government investigations in which we become involved may significantly increase our expenses and adversely affect our stock price.

Currently and from time to time, we are a party to various lawsuits. Any lawsuits, threatened lawsuits or government investigations in which we are involved could cost us a significant amount of time and money to defend, could distract management s attention away from operating our business, could result in negative publicity and could adversely affect our stock price. In addition, if any claims are determined against us or if a settlement requires us to pay a large monetary amount or take other action that materially restricts or impedes our operations, our profitability could be significantly reduced and our financial position could be adversely affected. We cannot make assurances that we will have any or sufficient insurance to cover any litigation claims.

An impairment in carrying value of goodwill could negatively impact our consolidated results of operations and net worth.

Goodwill and identifiable intangible assets not subject to amortization are tested annually by each reporting unit on October 1st of each year for impairment and are tested for impairment more frequently based upon the existence of one or more indicators. We consider our operating segments, U.S. and International, as our reporting units under Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) authoritative guidance for consideration of potential impairment of goodwill. We assess the impairment of long-lived assets, identifiable intangibles and goodwill whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. The existence of one or more of the following indicators could cause us to test for impairment prior to the annual assessment:

significant underperformance relative to historical or projected future operating results;

significant changes in the manner of our use of acquired assets or the strategy for our overall business;

significant negative industry or economic trends; or

significant decline in our market capitalization relative to net book value for a sustained period.

These types of events or indicators and the resulting impairment analysis could result in goodwill impairment charges in the future, which would reduce our profitability. Impairment charges could negatively affect our financial results in the periods of such charges, which may reduce our profitability. As of March 31, 2011, we had \$80.5 million of goodwill, \$55.3 million in our U.S. segment and \$25.2 million in our International segment.

We may not be able to successfully introduce new or upgraded information, marketing and analytic services, which could decrease our revenues and our profitability.

Our future business and financial success will depend on our ability to continue to introduce new and upgraded services into the marketplace. To be successful, we must adapt to rapid technological changes by continually enhancing our information, marketing and analytic services. Developing new services and upgrades to services imposes heavy burdens on our systems department, management and researchers. This process is costly, and we cannot assure you that we will be able to successfully develop and enhance our services. In addition, successfully

launching and selling a new service puts pressure on our sales and marketing resources. If we are unable to develop new or upgraded services, then our customers may choose a competitive service over ours and our revenues may decline and our profitability may be reduced. In addition, if we incur significant costs in developing new or upgraded services, are not successful in marketing and selling these new services or upgrades, or our customers fail to accept these new services, it could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations by decreasing our revenues and reducing our profitability.

Our expansion into the commercial real estate analytics sector may not be successful or may not result in increased revenues, which may negatively impact our business, results of operations and financial position.

Expanding into the commercial real estate market research and forecasting arena imposes additional burdens on our research, systems development, sales, marketing and general management resources. During 2011, we expect to continue to expand our presence in the commercial real estate analytics sector. If we are unable to manage this expansion effectively or if our costs for this effort exceed our expectations, our financial position could be adversely affected. In addition, if we incur additional costs to expand our analytics services and we are not successful in marketing or selling these expanded services, our expansion may have a material adverse effect on our financial position by increasing our expenses without increasing our revenues, adversely affecting our profitability.

As a result of consolidation of facilities, we may incur additional costs.

We have taken, and may continue to take, actions that may increase our cost structure in the short-term but are intended to reduce certain portions of our long-term cost structure, such as consolidation of office space. As a result of consolidation of office space, we may reduce our long-term occupancy costs, but incur restructuring charges. If our long-term cost reduction efforts are ineffective or our estimates of cost savings are inaccurate, our profitability could be negatively impacted. Expected savings from relocating facilities can be highly variable and uncertain. For instance, we may not meet the requirements necessary to receive the full property tax abatement provided by the District of Columbia as incentive for us to relocate our headquarters to downtown Washington, DC and may incur greater property taxes than anticipated in connection with the move to our new headquarters. Further, we may not be successful in achieving the operating efficiencies or operating cost reductions expected from these efforts in the amounts or at the times we anticipate.

If we are unable to enforce or defend our ownership and use of intellectual property, our business, competitive position and operating results could be harmed.

The success of our business depends in large part on the intellectual property involved in our methodologies, database, services and software. We rely on a combination of trade secret, patent, copyright and other laws, nondisclosure and noncompetition provisions, license agreements and other contractual provisions and technical measures to protect our intellectual property rights. However, current law may not provide for adequate protection of our databases and the actual data. In addition, legal standards relating to the validity, enforceability and scope of protection of proprietary rights in internet related businesses are uncertain and evolving, and we cannot assure you of the future viability or value of any of our proprietary rights. Our business could be significantly harmed if we are not able to protect our content and our other

intellectual property. The same would be true if a court found that our services infringe other persons intellectual property rights. Any intellectual property lawsuits or threatened lawsuits in which we are involved, either as a plaintiff or as a defendant, could cost us a significant amount of time and money and distract management s attention from operating our business. In addition, if we do not prevail on any intellectual property claims, this could result in a change to our methodology or information, marketing and analytic services and could reduce our profitability.

Technical problems that affect either our customers—ability to access our services, or the software, internal applications and systems underlying our services, could lead to reduced demand for our information, marketing and analytic services, lower revenues and increased costs.

Our business increasingly depends upon the satisfactory performance, reliability and availability of our website, the internet and our service providers. Problems with our website, the internet or the services provided by our local exchange carriers or internet service providers could result in slower connections for our customers or interfere with our customers—access to our information, marketing and analytic services. If we experience technical problems in distributing our services, we could experience reduced demand for our information, marketing and analytic services. In addition, the software, internal applications and systems underlying our services are complex and may not be efficient or error-free. Our careful development and testing may not be sufficient to ensure that we will not encounter technical problems when we attempt to enhance our software, internal applications and systems. Any inefficiencies, errors or technical problems with our software, internal applications and systems could reduce the quality of our services or interfere with our customers—access to our information, marketing and analytic services, which could reduce the demand for our services, lower our revenues and increase our costs.

If we are not able to obtain and maintain accurate, comprehensive or reliable data, we could experience reduced demand for our information, marketing and analytic services.

Our success depends on our clients confidence in the comprehensiveness, accuracy and reliability of the data and analysis we provide. The task of establishing and maintaining accurate and reliable data and analysis is challenging. If our data, including the data we obtain from third parties, or analysis is not current, accurate, comprehensive or reliable, we could experience reduced demand for our services or legal claims by our customers, which could result in lower revenues and higher expenses. Our U.S. researchers use integrated internal research processes to update our database. Any inefficiencies, errors or technical problems with this application could reduce the quality of our data, which could result in reduced demand for our services, lower revenues and higher costs.

Temporary or permanent outages of our computers, software or telecommunications equipment could lead to reduced demand for our information, marketing and analytic services, lower revenues and increased costs.

Our operations depend on our ability to protect our database, computers and software, telecommunications equipment and facilities against damage from potential dangers such as fire, power loss, security breaches, computer viruses and telecommunications failures. Any temporary or permanent loss of one or more of these systems or facilities from an accident,

equipment malfunction or some other cause could harm our business. If we experience a failure that prevents us from delivering our information, marketing and analytic services to clients, we could experience reduced demand for our information, marketing and analytic services, lower revenues and increased costs.

Changes in accounting and reporting policies or practices may affect our financial results or presentation of results, which may affect our stock price.

Changes in accounting and reporting policies or practices could reduce our net income, which reductions may be independent of changes in our operations. These reductions in reported net income could cause our stock price to decline. For example, in 2006, we adopted authoritative guidance for stock compensation, which required us to expense the value of granted stock options.

Our business depends on retaining and attracting highly capable management and operating personnel.

Our success depends in large part on our ability to retain and attract management and operating personnel, including our President and Chief Executive Officer, Andrew Florance, and our other officers and key employees. Our business requires highly skilled technical, sales, management, web development, marketing and research personnel, who are in high demand and are often subject to competing offers. To retain and attract key personnel, we use various measures, including employment agreements, awards under a stock incentive plan and incentive bonuses for key executive officers. These measures may not be enough to retain and attract the personnel we need or to offset the impact on our business of the loss of the services of Mr. Florance or other key officers or employees.

Risks relating to the offering

The price of our common stock may fluctuate significantly, and this may make it difficult for you to resell shares of common stock owned by you at times or at prices you find attractive.

The trading price of our common stock may fluctuate widely as a result of a number of factors, many of which are outside our control. In addition, the stock market is subject to fluctuations in the share prices and trading volumes that affect the market prices of the shares of many companies. These broad market fluctuations have adversely affected and may continue to adversely affect the market price of our common stock. Among the factors that could affect our stock price are:

actual or anticipated quarterly fluctuations in our operating results and financial condition;

changes in revenue or earnings estimates or publication of research reports and recommendations by financial analysts or actions taken by rating agencies with respect to our securities or those of other financial institutions;

failure to meet analysts revenue or earnings estimates;

speculation in the press or investment community generally or relating to our reputation or the commercial real estate industry;

strategic actions by us or our competitors, such as acquisitions or restructurings;

S-20

actions by institutional shareholders;

fluctuations in the stock price and operating results of our competitors;

future sales of our equity or equity-related securities, including in connection with the acquisition;

changes in the frequency or amount of share repurchases;

proposed or adopted regulatory changes or developments;

anticipated or pending investigations, proceedings or litigation that involve or affect us;

domestic and international economic factors unrelated to our performance; or

general market conditions and, in particular, developments related to market conditions for the commercial real estate industry.

A significant decline in our stock price could result in substantial losses for individual shareholders and could lead to costly and disruptive securities litigation.

Our stock price may be negatively affected by fluctuations in our financial results.

Our operating results, revenues and expenses may fluctuate as a result of changes in general economic conditions and also for many other reasons, many of which are outside of our control, such as: cancellations or non-renewals of our services; competition; our ability to control expenses; loss of clients or revenues; technical problems with our services; changes or consolidation in the real estate industry; our investments in geographic expansion and to increase coverage in existing markets; interest rate fluctuations; the timing and success of new service introductions and enhancements; successful execution of our expansion plans; data quality; the development of our sales force; managerial execution; employee retention; foreign currency and exchange rate fluctuations; inflation; successful adoption of and training on our services; litigation; acquisitions of other companies or assets; sales, brand enhancement and marketing promotional activities; client support activities; changes in client budgets; or our investments in other corporate resources. In addition, changes in accounting policies or practices may affect our level of net income. Fluctuations in our financial results, revenues and expenses may cause the market price of our common stock to decline.

Market volatility may have an adverse effect on our stock price.

The trading price of our common stock has fluctuated widely in the past, and we expect that it will continue to fluctuate in the future. The price could fluctuate widely based on numerous factors, including: economic factors; quarter-to-quarter variations in our operating results; changes in analysts—estimates of our earnings; announcements by us or our competitors of technological innovations or new services; general conditions in the commercial real estate industry; developments or disputes concerning copyrights or proprietary rights or other legal proceedings; and regulatory developments. In addition, the stock market in general, and the shares of internet-related and other technology companies in particular, have experienced extreme price fluctuations. This volatility has had a substantial effect on the market prices of

securities issued by many companies for reasons unrelated to the operating performance of the specific companies and may have the same effect on the market price of our common stock.

There may be future sales or other dilution of our equity, which may adversely affect the market price of our common stock.

Except as described under Underwriting, we are not restricted from issuing additional shares of common stock, including any securities that are convertible into or exchangeable for, or that represent the right to receive, common stock. The issuance of any additional shares of common or of preferred stock or convertible securities could be substantially dilutive to holders of our common stock. Moreover, to the extent that we issue restricted stock units, stock appreciation rights, options or warrants to purchase shares of our common stock in the future and those stock appreciation rights, options, or warrants are exercised or as the restricted stock units vest, our shareholders may experience further dilution. In addition, we expect to issue up to 2,250,000 shares of our common stock as consideration in the acquisition. Holders of our common stock have no preemptive rights that entitle holders to purchase their pro rata share of any offering of shares of any class or series and, therefore, such sales or offerings could result in increased dilution to our shareholders. The market price of our common stock could decline as a result of sales of shares of our common stock made after this offering or the perception that such sales could occur.

The common stock is equity and is subordinate to our existing and future indebtedness and preferred stock.

Shares of the common stock are equity interests in CoStar and do not constitute indebtedness. As such, shares of the common stock will rank junior to all indebtedness and other non-equity claims on CoStar with respect to assets available to satisfy claims on CoStar, including in a liquidation of CoStar. Additionally, our board of directors is authorized to issue series of preferred stock without any action on the part of holders of our common stock. Holders of our common stock are subject to the prior dividend and liquidation rights of any holders of our preferred stock or depositary shares representing such preferred stock then outstanding.

We do not currently intend to pay dividends on our common stock and, consequently, your ability to achieve a return on your investment will depend on appreciation in the price of our common stock.

We have never declared or paid any cash dividends on our common stock and do not intend to do so for the foreseeable future. We currently intend to invest our future earnings, if any, to finance our growth or share repurchases. In addition, the provisions of the credit agreement governing the proposed credit facilities will limit our ability to pay cash dividends. Therefore, you are not likely to receive any dividends on your common stock for the foreseeable future and the success of an investment in shares of our common stock will depend upon any future appreciation in their value. There is no guarantee that shares of our common stock will appreciate in value or even maintain the price at which our stockholders have purchased their shares.

We have not identified any specific use of the net proceeds of this offering in the event the merger agreement is terminated.

Consummation of the acquisition is subject to a number of conditions and, if the merger agreement is terminated for any reason, our board of directors and management will have broad discretion over the use of the net proceeds we receive in this offering and might not apply the net proceeds in ways that increase the trading price of our common stock. Since the primary purpose of this offering is to provide funds to pay a portion of the acquisition consideration, we have not identified a specific use for the net proceeds in the event the acquisition does not occur. Any funds received may be used by us for any corporate purpose, which may include pursuit of other business combinations, expansion of our operations, share repurchases or other uses. The failure of our management to use the net proceeds from this offering effectively could have an adverse effect on our business and may have an adverse effect on our earnings per share.

Use of proceeds

We estimate that the net proceeds of this offering will be approximately \$\\$. If the underwriters exercise their option to purchase additional shares in full, the net proceeds of this offering will be approximately \$\\$. Net proceeds is what we expect to receive after paying the underwriting discount and commissions and other estimated expenses of the offering.

We expect to use the net proceeds of this offering to fund a portion of the cash consideration payable in connection with the acquisition and, to the extent that any proceeds remain thereafter, or the acquisition is not completed, for general corporate purposes. This offering is not conditioned on the closing of the acquisition and there can be no assurance that the acquisition will be completed. The shares offered hereby will remain outstanding whether or not the acquisition is completed.

We expect that, as of May 18, 2011, the total cash consideration payable in respect of the LoopNet common stock and other equity securities of LoopNet in connection with the acquisition will be approximately \$739.8 million. In addition to the net proceeds from this offering, we expect to use available cash and the proceeds from the proposed credit facilities to complete the acquisition.

S-24

Selected historical consolidated financial and operating data of the company

The following tables present selected historical consolidated financial and operating data of CoStar as of the dates and for the periods provided. The selected financial data for each of the years ended December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010 and as of December 31, 2009 and 2010 are derived from our audited consolidated financial statements and related notes contained in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010, which is incorporated by reference into this prospectus supplement. The selected financial data for each of the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2007 and as of December 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008 have been derived from our audited consolidated financial statements for such years, which have not been incorporated into this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus by reference. The selected financial data as of March 31, 2011 and for the quarterly periods ended March 31, 2010 and 2011 are derived from our unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements and related notes contained in our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2011, which is incorporated by reference into this prospectus supplement, which financial statements include, in the opinion of our management team, all normal and recurring adjustments that are considered necessary for the fair presentation of the results for the period and dates presented.

The information in the following table is only a summary and is not necessarily indicative of the results of future operations of CoStar or the combined company following the acquisition. You should read the following information together with our audited and unaudited consolidated financial statements, including the notes thereto and Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations contained in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010, and our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2011, which are incorporated by reference into this prospectus

supplement. See Where you can find additional information beginning on page S-57 of this prospectus supplement.

| in thousands, except per share data) | 2006 | | | 2007 | Year ended December 31, 2007 2008 2009 2010 | | | | | | Three months ended March 31, 2010 2011 | | | |
|--|------|-------------------|----|-------------------|---|-------------------|----|--------------------|----|--------------------|--|------------------|----|------------------|
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Consolidated statement of operations lata: | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Revenues Cost of revenues | \$ | 158,889 56,136 | \$ | 192,805 76,704 | \$ | 212,428 73,408 | \$ | 209,659 73,714 | \$ | 226,260 83,599 | \$ | 55,093 21,200 | \$ | 59,618 22,566 |
| Gross margin Operating expenses | | 102,753 88,672 | | 116,101 98,249 | | 139,020 99,232 | | 135,945 104,110 | | 142,661 119,886 | | 33,893 28,791 | | 37,052 29,956 |
| ncome from operations nterest and other income, net | | 14,081 6,845 | | 17,852 8,045 | | 39,788 4,914 | | 31,835 1,253 | | 22,775 735 | | 5,102 238 | | 7,096 202 |
| ncome before income taxes ncome tax expense, net | | 20,926 8,516 | | 25,897 9,946 | | 44,702 20,079 | | 33,088 14,395 | | 23,510 10,221 | | 5,340 2,451 | | 7,298 2,766 |
| Net income | \$ | 12,410 | \$ | 15,951 | \$ | 24,623 | \$ | 18,693 | \$ | 13,289 | \$ | 2,889 | \$ | 4,532 |
| Net income per share basic | \$ | 0.66 | \$ | 0.84 | \$ | 1.27 | \$ | 0.95 | \$ | 0.65 | \$ | 0.14 | \$ | 0.22 |
| Net income per share diluted | \$ | 0.65 | \$ | 0.82 | \$ | 1.26 | \$ | 0.94 | \$ | 0.64 | \$ | 0.14 | \$ | 0.22 |
| Weighted average shares outstanding basic | | 18,751 | | 19,044 | | 19,372 | | 19,780 | | 20,330 | | 20,249 | | 20,531 |
| Weighted average shares outstanding diluted | | 19,165 | | 19,404 | | 19,550 | | 19,925 | | 20,707 | | 20,602 | | 20,965 |

(in thousands)

As of March 31,

As of December 31,

| Consolidated | | | | | | | |
|---------------------|------------|------------|------------|------------|------------|------------|------------|
| balance sheet data: | | | | | | | |
| Cash, cash | | | | | | | |
| equivalents, | | | | | | | |
| short-term and | | | | | | | |
| long-term | | | | | | | |
| investments | \$ 158,148 | \$ 187,426 | \$ 224,590 | \$ 255,698 | \$ 239,316 | \$ 218,455 | \$ 325,023 |
| Working capital | 154,606 | 167,441 | 183,347 | 203,660 | 188,279 | 168,920 | 261,919 |
| Total assets | 275,437 | 321,843 | 334,384 | 404,579 | 439,648 | 407,864 | 506,479 |
| Total liabilities | 25,327 | 40,038 | 30,963 | 45,573 | 58,146 | 45,505 | 117,081 |
| Stockholders equity | 250,110 | 281,805 | 303,421 | 359,006 | 381,502 | 362,359 | 389,398 |

| | 2006 | 2007 | 2008 | As of Dece 2009 | ember 31, 2010 | As of N 2010 | March 31, 2011 |
|---|--------|--------|--------|--------------------|-------------------|-----------------|-------------------|
| Other operating data: (unaudited): Number of subscription | | | | | | | |
| client sites | 13,257 | 14,467 | 15,920 | 16,020 | 16,781 | 15,995 | 17,267 |
| Millions of properties in database | 2.1 | 2.7 | 3.2 | 3.6 | 4.0 | 3.7 | 4.0 |
| | | | S-26 | | | | |

Selected unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial data

The following table sets forth selected unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial data of CoStar as of March 31, 2011 and for the three months ended March 31, 2011 and the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010. The pro forma amounts in the table below are based on the historical consolidated financial data and the notes thereto of CoStar and LoopNet after giving effect to the acquisition, and after applying the assumptions, reclassifications and adjustments described in the accompanying notes to the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial data.

The selected unaudited pro forma financial data in the table below should be read in conjunction with the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial data and the accompanying disclosures included elsewhere in this prospectus supplement and with the historical financial statements and accompanying disclosures of CoStar and LoopNet, which are incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement. The selected unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial data are provided for informational purposes only and do not purport to represent what CoStar s financial position or results of operations would actually have been had the acquisition occurred on those dates or to project CoStar s results of operations or financial position for any future period. See Unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial data of the Company and LoopNet beginning on page S-31 of this prospectus supplement and Where you can find additional information beginning on page S-57 of this prospectus supplement.

| (in thousands, except per share data) | For the year ended December 31, 2010 | For the three months ended March 31, 2011 | | |
|--|---|---|------------------|--|
| Consolidated statement of operations data: Revenues Cost of revenues | \$ 304,262 96,161 | \$ | 80,331 25,723 | |
| Gross margin Operating expenses | 208,101 202,916 | | 54,608 53,253 | |
| Income from operations Interest and other income (expense), net | 5,185 (12,298) | | 1,355 (2,757) | |
| Income (loss) before income taxes Income tax benefit, net | (7,113) (8,042) | | (1,402) (828) | |
| Net income (loss) | \$ 929 | \$ | (574) | |

| | \$ 0.04 | \$ | (0.02) |
|---------|------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|
| | \$ 0.04 | \$ | (0.02) |
| basic | 26,054 | | 26,255 |
| diluted | 26,431 | | 26,255 |
| | \$ basic | \$ 0.04 basic 26,054 | \$ 0.04 \$ basic 26,054 |

(in thousands) As of March 31, 2011

Consolidated balance sheet data:

| Cash, cash equivalents, short-term and long-term investments | \$ | 70,979 |
|--|----|----------|
| Working capital | | 890 |
| Total assets | 1. | ,102,546 |
| Total liabilities | | 358,187 |
| Stockholders equity | | 744,359 |

Comparative historical and unaudited pro forma per share data

The following table sets forth selected historical per share information of CoStar and LoopNet and unaudited pro forma combined per share information after giving effect to the acquisition under the acquisition method of accounting, assuming that 0.03702 of a share of CoStar common stock had been issued in exchange for each outstanding share of LoopNet common stock, other than excluded shares (which amount does not include the \$16.50 per share cash portion of the acquisition consideration). The acquisition accounting is dependent upon certain valuations of LoopNet assets and liabilities and other studies that have yet to commence or progress to a stage where there is sufficient information for a definitive measurement. Accordingly, the pro forma adjustments reflect the assets and liabilities of LoopNet at their preliminary estimated fair values. Differences between these preliminary estimates and the final acquisition accounting will occur and these differences could have a material impact on the unaudited pro forma combined per share information set forth in the following table.

In accordance with the requirements of the SEC, the pro forma per share information gives effect to the acquisition as if the acquisition had been effective on January 1, 2010, in the case of income from continuing operations per share data, and March 31, 2011, in the case of book value per share data.

The unaudited CoStar pro forma combined per share information is derived from, and should be read in conjunction with, the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements and related notes included in this prospectus supplement. The historical per share information of CoStar and LoopNet is derived from audited financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2010 and the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements as of and for the three months ended March 31, 2011.

Neither CoStar nor LoopNet has historically paid dividends. Under the terms of the merger agreement, LoopNet is prohibited from declaring or paying any dividends prior to completion of the acquisition. In addition, the provisions of the credit agreement governing the proposed credit facilities will limit our ability to pay cash dividends.

The unaudited pro forma combined per share information does not purport to represent what the actual results of operations of CoStar and LoopNet would have been had the companies been combined during these periods or to project the future results of operations that CoStar may achieve after the acquisition.

You should read this information in conjunction with the selected historical financial data included elsewhere in this prospectus supplement, and the historical financial statements of CoStar and LoopNet and related notes that have been filed with the SEC, certain of which are incorporated in this prospectus supplement by reference. See Selected historical consolidated financial and operating data of the Company and Where you can find additional information beginning on pages S-25 and S-57, respectively, of this prospectus supplement. The unaudited CoStar pro forma combined per share information is derived from, and should be read in conjunction with, the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements and related notes included in this prospectus supplement. See Unaudited pro forma condensed

combined financial data of the Company and LoopNet beginning on page S-31 of this prospectus supplement.

| | Year ended December 31, 2010 | As of and for the Three months ended March 31, 2011 |
|-------------------------------------|------------------------------------|--|
| CoStar historical | | |
| Per common share data: | | |
| Net income (loss) basic | \$ 0.65 | \$ 0.22 |
| Net income (loss) diluted | 0.64 | 0.22 |
| Book value | 18.37 | 18.70 |
| LoopNet historical | | |
| Per common share data: | | |
| Net income (loss) basic | \$ 0.38 | \$ 0.04 |
| Net income (loss) diluted | 0.36 | 0.04 |
| Book value | 3.25 | 3.37 |
| Unaudited CoStar pro forma combined | | |
| Per common share data: | | |
| Net income (loss) basic | \$ 0.04 | \$ (0.02) |
| Net income (loss) diluted | 0.04 | (0.02) |
| S-30 | | |

Unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial data of the company and LoopNet

The following unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements are based upon the historical consolidated financial data of CoStar and LoopNet after giving effect to the acquisition, and after applying the assumptions, reclassifications and adjustments described in the accompanying notes based on current intentions and expectations relating to the combined business.

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined statements of income combine the historical consolidated statements of income of CoStar and LoopNet, giving effect to the acquisition, as if it had occurred on January 1, 2010. The unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheet combines the historical consolidated balance sheets of CoStar and LoopNet, giving effect to the acquisition as if it had occurred on March 31, 2011. The historical consolidated financial data have been adjusted in the unaudited pro forma condensed financial data to give effect to pro forma events that are (1) directly attributable to the acquisition, (2) factually supportable, and (3) with respect to the statement of income, expected to have a continuing impact on the combined results. The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial data should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes to the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial data. In addition, the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial data were based on and should be read in conjunction with the:

separate historical financial statements of CoStar for the year ended December 31, 2010 and as of and for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2011 and the related notes included in CoStar s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010 and CoStar s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2011, respectively, each of which is incorporated by reference into this prospectus supplement, and

separate historical financial statements of LoopNet for the year ended December 31, 2010 and as of and for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2011 and the related notes included in our Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 23, 2011, which is incorporated by reference into this prospectus supplement.

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial data have been presented for informational purposes only. The pro forma information is not necessarily indicative of what the combined company s financial position or results of operations actually would have been had the acquisition been completed as of the dates indicated. In addition, the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial data do not purport to project the future financial position or operating results of the combined company.

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial data have been prepared using the acquisition method of accounting under existing U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, or GAAP standards, which are subject to change and interpretation. The acquisition accounting is dependent upon certain valuations and other studies that have yet to commence or progress to a stage where there is sufficient information for a definitive measurement. Accordingly, the pro forma adjustments are preliminary and have been made solely for the purpose of providing unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial data. Differences between these preliminary estimates and the final acquisition accounting will occur and these differences could have a material impact on the accompanying unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial data and the combined company s future results of operations and financial position.

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial data do not reflect any cost savings, operating synergies or revenue enhancements that the combined company may achieve as a result of the acquisition or the costs to integrate

the operations of CoStar and LoopNet or the costs necessary to achieve these cost savings, operating synergies and revenue enhancements.

Unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheet as of March 31, 2011

| (in thousands) | Historical CoStar | | Historical LoopNet | | Pro forma adjustments | | Pro forma combined | |
|--|----------------------|-----------------|-----------------------|---------|--------------------------|-----------------------|-----------------------|-------------------|
| ASSETS Current assets: | | | | | | | | |
| Cash and cash equivalents | \$ | 292,252 | \$ | 93,805 | \$ | (344,192)(a) | \$ | 41,865 |
| Short-term investments | | 3,657 | | 3,530 | | (7,187)(a) | | |
| Accounts receivable, net | | 16,240 | | 1,744 | | | | 17,984 |
| Deferred income taxes, net | | 5,494 | | 1,315 | | | | 6,809 |
| Income tax receivable | | 4,940 | | | | | | 4,940 |
| Prepaid expenses and other current assets | | 4,179 | | 1,111 | | | | 5,290 |
| Total current assets | | 326,762 | | 101,505 | | (351,379) | | 76,888 |
| Long-term investments | | 29,114 | | | | | | 29,114 |
| Deferred income taxes, net | | 12,652 | | 16,432 | | (29,084)(e) | | |
| Property and equipment, net | | 36,886 | | 2,556 | | | | 39,442 |
| Goodwill | | 80,488 | | 41,507 | | 600,569(b) | | 722,564 |
| Intangibles and other assets, net | | 17,898 | | 8,299 | | 192,998(c) | | 219,195 |
| Deposits and other assets | | 2,679 | | 6,526 | | 6,138(d) | | 15,343 |
| Total assets | \$ | 506,479 | \$ | 176,825 | \$ | 419,242 | \$ | 1,102,546 |
| LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY | | | | | | | | |
| Current liabilities: | Φ. | 2.251 | Φ. | 020 | Φ. | | ф | 4 171 |
| Accounts payable | \$ | 3,351 | \$ | 820 | \$ | | \$ | 4,171 |
| Accrued wages and commissions | | 7,581 17,712 | | 2,531 | | | | 10,112 20,879 |
| Accrued expenses Deferred gain on the sale of building | | 2,523 | | 3,167 | | | | 2,523 |
| Income taxes payable | | 14,831 | | | | | | 14,831 |
| Deferred revenue | | 18,845 | | 9,443 | | (6,556)(f) | | 21,732 |
| Current portion of long-term debt | | 10,010 | | ,, | | 1,750(d) | | 1,750 |
| Total current liabilities | | 64 942 | | 15 061 | | (4.906) | | 75 000 |
| Long-term debt | | 64,843 | | 15,961 | | (4,806) 173,250(d) | | 75,998 173,250 |
| Deferred gain on the sale of building | | 33,225 | | | | 173,230(u) | | 33,225 |
| Deferred rent and other long-term liabilities | | 17,216 | | 2,644 | | | | 19,860 |

| Deferred income taxes, net Income taxes payable | 1,797 | | 54,057(e) | 54,057 1,797 |
|--|------------|------------|-------------|-----------------|
| Series A convertible preferred stock | | 48,631 | (48,631)(g) | |
| Stockholders equity: | | | | |
| Common stock | 208 | 40 | 17(h) | 265 |
| Additional paid in capital | 377,320 | 135,172 | 245,732(h) | 758,224 |
| Other comprehensive loss | (7,681) | (383) | 383(h) | (7,681) |
| Treasury stock | | (86,227) | 86,227(h) | |
| Retained earnings (accumulated deficit) | 19,551 | 60,987 | (86,987)(h) | (6,449) |
| Total stockholders equity | 389,398 | 109,589 | 245,372 | 744,359 |
| Total liabilities and stockholders equity | \$ 506,479 | \$ 176,825 | \$ 419,242 | \$ 1,102,546 |
| | S-32 | | | |

Unaudited pro forma condensed combined statement of operations for year ended December 31, 2010

| (in thousands, except per share data) | Histori CoS | | Historical LoopNet | Pro forma adjustments | | ro forma ombined |
|---|------------------|--------|-----------------------|-----------------------|--------------------|-------------------------|
| Revenues Cost of revenues | \$ 226,2 83,5 | | 78,002 12,562 | \$ | | \$ 304,262 96,161 |
| Gross margin Operating expenses: | 142,0 | 661 | 65,440 | | | 208,101 |
| Selling and marketing | 52,4 | 455 | 16,785 | | | 69,240 |
| Software development | 17,3 | 350 | 12,231 | | | 29,581 |
| General and administrative | 47, | 776 | 15,693 | | | 63,469 |
| Purchase amortization | 2,3 | 305 | 2,083 | | 36,238(c) | 40,626 |
| | 119,8 | 886 | 46,792 | | 36,238 | 202,916 |
| Income (loss) from operations | 22,7 | | 18,648 | | (36,238) | 5,185 |
| Interest and other income (expense), net | • | 735 | (2,461) | | (10,572)(d) | (12,298) |
| Income (loss) before income taxes | 23,5 | | 16,187 | | (46,810) | (7,113) |
| Income tax expense (benefit), net | 10,2 | 221 | 461 | | (18,724)(e) | (8,042) |
| Net income (loss) Convertible preferred stock accretion of discount | 13,2 | 289 | 15,726 (339) | | (28,086) 339(g) | 929 |
| Net income (loss) applicable to common | | | | | | |
| stockholders | \$ 13,2 | 289 \$ | 15,387 | \$ | (27,747) | \$ 929 |
| Net income per share basic | \$ 0 | 0.65 | | | | \$ 0.04 |
| Net income per share diluted | \$ 0 |).64 | | | | \$ 0.04 |
| Weighted average outstanding shares basic | 20,3 | 330 | | | 5,724(h) | 26,054 |

| Weighted average outstanding shares | diluted | 20,707 | 5,724(h) | 26,431 |
|-------------------------------------|---------|--------|----------|--------|
|-------------------------------------|---------|--------|----------|--------|

Unaudited pro forma condensed combined statement of operations for the three months ended March 31, 2011

| (in thousands, except per share data) | storical CoStar | Historical LoopNet | | ro forma ustments | Pro forma combined | |
|---|------------------------|-----------------------|----|----------------------|------------------------|--|
| Revenues Cost of revenues | \$ 59,618 22,566 | \$ 20,713 3,157 | \$ | | \$ 80,331 25,723 | |
| Gross margin Operating expenses: | 37,052 | 17,556 | | | 54,608 | |
| Selling and marketing | 13,246 | 5,134 | | | 18,380 | |
| Software development | 5,268 | 3,659 | | | 8,927 | |
| General and administrative | 10,899 | 4,924 | | | 15,823 | |
| Purchase amortization | 543 | 641 | | 8,939(c) | 10,123 | |
| | 29,956 | 14,358 | | 8,939 | 53,253 | |
| Income (loss) from operations | 7,096 | 3,198 | | (8,939) | 1,355 | |
| Interest and other income (expense), net | 202 | (317) | | (2,642)(d) | (2,757) | |
| Income (loss) before income taxes | 7,298 | 2,881 | | (11,581) | (1,402) | |
| Income tax expense (benefit), net | 2,766 | 1,038 | | (4,632)(e) | (828) | |
| Net income (loss) Convertible preferred stock accretion of discount | 4,532 | 1,843 (85) | | (6,949) 85(g) | (574) | |
| Net income (loss) applicable to common stockholders | \$ 4,532 | \$ 1,758 | \$ | (6,864) | \$ (574) | |
| Net income (loss) per share basic | \$ 0.22 | | | | \$ (0.02) | |
| Net income (loss) per share diluted | \$ 0.22 | | | | \$ (0.02) | |
| Weighted average outstanding shares basic | 20,531 | | | 5,724(h) | 26,255 | |

| Weighted average outstanding shares | diluted | 20,965 | 5,290(h) | 26,255 |
|-------------------------------------|---------|--------|-----------|--------|
| Weighted average outstanding shares | unutcu | 20,703 | 5,270(11) | 20,233 |

1. Description of transaction

On April 27, 2011, CoStar, LoopNet and Lonestar Acquisition Sub, Inc., a Delaware corporation (merger sub), entered into an agreement setting forth the proposed terms of the acquisition, which we refer to in this prospectus supplement as the merger agreement. Pursuant to the merger agreement, and subject to the terms and conditions set forth therein, merger sub will be merged with and into LoopNet, with LoopNet continuing as the surviving corporation in the acquisition and a wholly-owned subsidiary of CoStar.

As a result of the acquisition, each outstanding share of LoopNet common stock, other than shares owned by CoStar, merger sub or LoopNet (which will be cancelled and retired) and other than those shares with respect to which appraisal rights are properly exercised and not withdrawn, will be converted into a unit consisting of (i) \$16.50 in cash (the cash consideration), without interest and (ii) 0.03702 shares of CoStar common stock (the stock consideration). Each outstanding share of Series A Preferred Stock will be converted into a unit consisting of (i) the product of 148.80952 multiplied by the cash consideration and (ii) the product of 148.80952 multiplied by the stock consideration.

The acquisition is subject to customary closing conditions, including approval by the stockholders of LoopNet and antitrust clearance. The acquisition is not subject to a financing condition. In certain circumstances set forth in the merger agreement, if the acquisition is not consummated or the merger agreement is terminated, LoopNet may be obligated to pay CoStar a termination fee of \$25.8 million. Similarly, in certain circumstances set forth in the merger agreement, if the acquisition is not consummated or the merger agreement is terminated, CoStar may be obligated to pay LoopNet a termination fee of \$51.6 million.

LoopNet options and RSUs outstanding pursuant to its equity plans, other than one-third of the performance-based RSUs and one-third of the performance-based stock options will be canceled in exchange for the product of the acquisition consideration, less the exercise price per share in the case of stock options, multiplied by the number of options or RSUs subject to the applicable award. The remaining one-third of the performance-based RSUs and one-third of the performance-based stock options will be canceled in exchange for the same consideration as the other options and RSUs, except that portions payable in cash will be paid instead in a number of shares of CoStar common stock calculated based on the volume weighted average price per share of CoStar common stock on Nasdaq for the ten consecutive trading days ending two days prior to closing. If, as a result of the foregoing treatment of LoopNet s performance-based RSUs and stock options, the number of shares of CoStar common stock issued under the merger agreement would exceed 2,250,000 shares of CoStar common stock, CoStar may choose to pay to the holders of the applicable performance-based RSUs and stock options the amount in excess of 2,250,000 shares of CoStar common stock in cash. In addition, stock options with an exercise price equal to or greater than the per share value of the acquisition consideration (with the stock component of such consideration being valued based on the volume weighted average price per share of CoStar common stock on Nasdaq for the ten consecutive trading days ending two days prior to closing) will be canceled without any payment.

2. Basis of presentation

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements were prepared using the acquisition method of accounting, under existing U.S. GAAP standards, which are subject to change and interpretation, and were based on the historical financial statements of CoStar and LoopNet.

These standards require, among other things, that most assets acquired and liabilities assumed be recognized at their fair value as of the acquisition. These standards also require that consideration transferred be measured at the closing date of the acquisition at the then-current market price; this particular requirement will likely result in a per share equity component that is different from the amount assumed in these unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements.

The accounting standards define the term—fair value—and set forth the valuation requirements for any asset or liability measured at fair value and specify a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on the inputs used to develop the fair value measures. Fair value is defined as—the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurements date. This is an exit price concept for the valuation of the asset or liability. In addition, market participants are assumed to be buyers and sellers in the principal (or most advantageous) market for the asset or liability. Fair value measurements for an asset assume the highest and best use by these market participants. As a result, CoStar may be required to record assets which are not intended to be used or sold and/or to value assets at fair value measures that do not reflect CoStar—s intended use of those assets. Many of these fair value measurements can be highly subjective and it is also possible that other professionals, applying reasonable judgment to the same facts and circumstances, could develop and support a range of alternative estimated amounts.

Under the acquisition method of accounting, the assets acquired and liabilities assumed will be recorded as of the completion of the acquisition, primarily at their respective fair values and added to those of CoStar. Financial statements and reported results of operations of CoStar issued after completion of the acquisition will reflect these values, but will not be retroactively restated to reflect the historical financial position or results of operations of LoopNet.

Acquisition-related transaction costs (i.e. advisory, legal, valuation, other professional fees) and certain acquisition-related restructuring charges impacting the target company are not included as a component of consideration transferred but are accounted for as expenses in the periods in which the costs are incurred. Total advisory, legal, regulatory and valuation costs expected to be incurred by CoStar are estimated to be approximately \$26.0 million and are reflected in these unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements as a reduction to cash and retained earnings.

3. Accounting policies

Upon consummation of the acquisition, CoStar will review LoopNet s accounting policies. As a result of that review, CoStar may identify differences between the accounting policies of the two companies that, when conformed, could have a material impact on the combined financial statements. At this time, CoStar is not aware of any differences that would have a material impact on the combined financial statements. The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements do not assume any differences in accounting policies.

4. Estimate of consideration expected to be transferred

The following is a preliminary estimate of consideration expected to be transferred to effect the acquisition (in thousands, except per share data):

| | | | Estimated fair value CoStar | | | Estimated CoStar shares to | |
|---|----|-----------------------|--------------------------------|---------|----|----------------------------------|---------------------------|
| (in thousands, except per share data) | | nversion Iculation | | Cash | • | common stock | be issued @ \$68.58 |
| Number of shares of LoopNet common stock outstanding as of May 18, 2011 Multiplied by CoStar s stock price as of May 18, 2011 | | 32,519.2 | | | | | |
| multiplied by the exchange ratio of 0.03702 (\$68.58x0.03702) | \$ | 2.54 | | | \$ | 82,561 | 1,204 |
| Number of shares of LoopNet common stock outstanding as of May 18, 2011 Multiplied by cash consideration per common share outstanding | | 32,519.2 | | | | | |
| | | 16.50 | \$ | 536,567 | | | |
| Number of shares of LoopNet common stock into which LoopNet Series A Convertible Preferred Stock outstanding at May 18, 2011 is convertible (50,000 actual shares x 148.81) | | 7,440.5 | | | | | |
| Multiplied by CoStar s stock price as of May 18, 2011 multiplied by the exchange ratio of 0.03702 (\$68.58x0.03702) | \$ | 2.54 | | | \$ | 18,890 | 276 |
| Number of shares of LoopNet common stock into which LoopNet Series A Convertible Preferred Stock outstanding at May 18, 2011 is convertible (50,000 actual shares x | | | | | | | |
| 148.81) Multiplied by cash consideration per common share | | 7,440.5 | | | | | |
| outstanding | \$ | 16.50 | \$ | 122,768 | | | |
| Number of shares of LoopNet stock options vested and unvested, including performance options, as of May 18, 2011 expected to be canceled and exchanged for purchase | | | | | | | |
| consideration | | 9,506.2 | | | | | |

| Multiplied by the difference between the per share value of the acquisition consideration as of May 18, 2011 and the weighted-average option exercise price of in-the-money options | \$ 9.12 | \$ 60,244 | \$ 26,411 | 385 |
|--|-------------|---------------|---------------------|-------|
| Number of outstanding restricted stock units, including performance share unit awards, as of May 18, 2011, expected to be canceled Multiplied by the per share value of the acquisition | 1,458.1 | | | |
| consideration as of May 18, 2011 | \$ 19.04 | \$ 20,264 | \$ 7,497 | 109 |
| | | \$ 739,843 | \$ 135,359 | 1,974 |
| Estimate of consideration expected to be transferred | | | \$ 875,202 | |
| Common stock, par value \$0.01 Additional paid-in capital | | | \$ 20 135,339 | |
| Total stock consideration | | | \$ 135,359 | |
| | | | | |
| Certain amounts may reflect rounding adjustments. | | | | |

The estimated consideration expected to be transferred reflected in these unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements does not purport to represent what the actual consideration transferred will be when the acquisition is consummated. The fair value of equity securities issued as part of the consideration transferred will be measured on the closing date of the acquisition at the then-current market price. This requirement will likely result in a per share equity component different from the \$2.54 assumed in these unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements and that difference may be material. CoStar believes that an increase or decrease by as much as 20% in the CoStar common stock price on the closing date of the acquisition from the common stock price assumed in these unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements is reasonably possible based upon the historic volatility of CoStar s common stock price and the time it may take to complete the acquisition. A change of this magnitude would increase or decrease the consideration expected to be transferred by about \$26.0 million, which would be reflected in these unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements as an increase or decrease to goodwill.

5. Estimate of assets to be acquired and liabilities to be assumed

The following is a preliminary estimate of the assets to be acquired and the liabilities to be assumed by CoStar in the acquisition, reconciled to the estimate of consideration expected to be transferred (in thousands):

| Book value of net assets acquired as March 31, 2011 Adjusted for: | \$ 158,220 |
|--|---------------|
| Elimination of existing goodwill and intangible assets | (49,806) |
| Adjusted book value of net assets acquired Adjustments to: | 108,414 |
| Identifiable intangible assets(i) | 201,297 |
| Deferred revenue(ii) | 6,556 |
| Taxes (iii) | (83,141) |
| Goodwill(iv) | 642,076 |
| Total estimated consideration | \$ 875,202 |

(i) As of the effective time of the acquisition, identifiable intangible assets are required to be measured at fair value and these acquired assets could include assets that are not intended to be used or sold or that are intended to be used in a manner other than their highest and best use. For purposes of these unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements, it is assumed that all assets will be used and that all assets will be used in a manner that represents the highest and best use of those assets, but it is not assumed that any market participant synergies will be achieved. The consideration of synergies has been excluded because they are not considered to be factually supportable, which is a required condition for these pro forma adjustments.

The fair value of identifiable intangible assets is determined primarily using the income method, which starts with a forecast of all expected future net cash flows. Under the HSR Act and other relevant laws and regulations, there are significant limitations regarding what CoStar can learn about the specifics of the LoopNet intangible assets prior to the consummation of the transaction and any such process will take time to complete.

At this time, CoStar does not have sufficient information as to the amount, timing and risk of cash flows of these intangible assets. Some of the more significant assumptions inherent in the development of intangible asset values,

from the perspective of a market participant include: the amount and timing of projected future cash flows (including revenue, cost of sales, research and development costs, sales and marketing expenses, and working capital/contributory asset charges); the discount rate selected to measure the risks inherent in the future cash flows; and the assessment of the asset s life cycle and the competitive trends impacting the asset, as well as other factors. However, for purposes of these unaudited

pro forma condensed combined financial statements and using publicly available information, the fair value of the identifiable intangible assets and their weighted-average useful lives have been estimated as follows (in thousands):

| | | ited fair alue | Estimated useful life |
|--|---------|----------------------|-------------------------------|
| Customer relationships Database technology Trade names | 61, | 512 264 521 | 5 years 4 years 7 years |
| Total | \$ 201, | 297 | |

These preliminary estimates of fair value and useful life will likely be different from the final acquisition accounting, and the difference could have a material impact on the accompanying unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements. Once CoStar has full access to the specifics of the LoopNet intangible assets, additional insight will be gained that could impact (a) the estimated total value assigned to intangible assets, (b) the estimated allocation of value between assets and/or (c) the estimated useful life of each category of intangible assets. The estimated intangible asset values and their useful lives could be impacted by a variety of factors that may become known to us only upon access to additional information and/or by changes in such factors that may occur prior to the effective time of the acquisition. These factors include but are not limited to the regulatory, legislative, legal, technological and competitive environments. Increased knowledge about these and/or other elements could result in a change to the estimated fair value of the LoopNet intangible assets and/or to the estimated useful lives from what we have assumed in these unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements. The combined effect of any such changes could then also result in a significant increase or decrease to our estimate of associated amortization expense.

- (ii) Reflects the preliminary fair value adjustment to deferred revenues acquired from LoopNet. The preliminary fair value represents an amount equivalent to the estimated cost plus an appropriate profit margin to perform services based on deferred revenue balances of LoopNet as of March 31, 2011. The preliminary estimate of the cost and appropriate margin may be different from the final acquisition accounting and the difference could have a material impact on the accompanying unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements.
- (iii) Reflects CoStar s estimated income tax rate of 40% applied to the estimated fair value of identifiable intangible assets to be acquired of \$201.3 million and the estimated deferred revenue adjustment of \$6.6 million.
- (iv) Goodwill is calculated as the difference between the acquisition date fair value of the consideration expected to be transferred and the values assigned to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed. Goodwill is not amortized.

Other than the preliminary estimated adjustments identified above, the accompanying unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements assume that the book value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed by CoStar in the acquisition is representative of their fair value. This preliminary estimate of the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed may be different from the final acquisition accounting and the difference could have a material impact on the accompanying unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements.

6. Pro forma adjustments

This note should be read in conjunction with *Note 1. Description of Transaction*; *Note 2. Basis of Presentation*; *Note 4. Estimate of Consideration Expected to be Transferred*; and *Note 5. Estimate of Assets to be Acquired and Liabilities to be Assumed*. Adjustments included in the column under the heading Pro Forma Adjustments represent the following:

(a) Reflects a combination of debt and common stock offering proceeds in addition to the existing cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments to fund the acqusition. CoStar has received a commitment letter from JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. for a fully committed term loan of \$415.0 million and a \$50.0 million revolving credit facility, of which \$37.5 million is committed, to fund the acquisition and our ongoing working capital needs following the acquisition. However, for purposes of preparing the pro forma condensed combined financial statements, we have assumed that we consummate the acquisition using the net proceeds of this offering, and have correspondingly reduced the estimated borrowings under the term loan to \$175.0 million. For purposes of preparing the pro forma condensed combined financial statements, net offering proceeds assume an offering of 3.75 million common shares at \$68.58 per share, which was the closing price per share of

CoStar common stock on May 18, 2011. Proceeds are net of the applicable underwriting discount and other fees.

Estimated sources and uses of cash (in thousands):

| Sources: Net proceeds from common stock offering Proceeds from issuance of debt instruments Short-term investments | \$ 245,602 175,000 7,187 |
|--|---|
| Uses: Cash portion of acquisition consideration Acquisition related transaction costs | 427,789 (739,843) (26,000) |
| Fees related to debt issuance | \$ (6,138) (771,981) (344,192) |
| (b) To adjust goodwill to an estimate of acquisition-date goodwill, as follows (in thousands): | |
| Eliminate LoopNet historical goodwill Estimated transaction goodwill | \$ (41,507) 642,076 |
| Total | \$ 600,569 |
| (c) To adjust intangible assets to an estimate of fair value, as follows (in thousands): | |
| Eliminate LoopNet historical intangible assets Estimated fair value of intangible assets acquired | \$ (8,299) 201,297 |
| Total | \$ 192,998 |

To adjust related amortization expense for the periods presented, as follows (in thousands):

For the three months ended

Edgar Filing: COSTAR GROUP INC - Form 424B2

| | Decem | ber 31, 2010 | Marc | h 31, 2011 |
|---|-------|-------------------|------|----------------|
| Eliminate LoopNet amortization of intangible assets Estimated amortization of acquired intangible assets | \$ | (2,083) 38,321 | \$ | (641) 9,580 |
| Total | \$ | 36,238 | \$ | 8,939 |

(d) CoStar has received a commitment letter from JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. with respect to the proposed credit facilities. JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. has the right to make certain changes to the terms of the proposed credit facilities in connection with achieving a successful syndication of the term loan portion of the proposed credit facilities, including, among other things, by increasing the interest rate margins on such term loan portion (which increase could result in an increase of the issuance costs payable at the closing of the acquisition) and by including a financial maintenance covenant for such term loan portion.

Estimated origination and issuance costs of \$6.1 million will be amortized to interest expense over the term of the proposed credit facilities. Amortization of debt issuance costs

are estimated to be \$867,000 and \$220,000 for the year ended December 31, 2010, and the quarterly period ended March 31, 2011, respectively.

The term loan is expected to have a seven year maturity with 27 quarterly payments of interest and principal payments of 1% per annum of the original principal amount of the term loan and a final payment of all outstanding principal and interest due and payable on the seventh anniversary of the closing date of the acquisition. CoStar expects to have the option to prepay all or any portion of the term loan at any time without penalty other than LIBOR breakage costs.

CoStar expects the term loan to carry an initial interest rate equal to LIBOR plus 3.5% with a LIBOR floor of 1.25%. CoStar anticipates entering into an interest rate swap in order to effectively fix the interest rate on half of the term loan, or \$87.5 million, at 5.5%. For purposes of the pro forma financial statements, the resulting blended effective interest rate on the term loan, including the amortization of issuance costs, is approximately 5.46%

The pro forma adjustments to interest and other income (expense), net are as follows (in thousands):

| | For the year ended aber 31, 2010 | mo | or the three onths ended ech 31, 2011 |
|---|--|----|---------------------------------------|
| Eliminate CoStar interest income to reflect change in cash and investment balances Estimated interest expense on the proposed credit facilities | \$ (735) (9,837) | \$ | (202) (2,440) |
| | \$ (10,572) | \$ | (2,642) |

CoStar s historical interest income for the periods presented has been eliminated in these pro forma statements of operations because they assume that the short-term investments which generated those returns will be liquidated.

(e) The pro forma adjustment to the deferred income tax liability is as follows (in thousands):

| | As of March 31, 2011 |
|---|----------------------|
| Estimated fair value of intangible assets to be acquired Estimated fair value of adjustment to deferred revenue | \$ 201,297 6,556 |
| Tax rate | 207,853 40% |
| Deferred tax liability, gross | 83,141 |

Reclassified CoStar and LoopNet historical net deferred tax assets

(29,084)

Deferred tax liability, net

\$

54,057

The pro forma adjustment to income tax expense represents the estimated income tax impact of the pro forma adjustments at a tax rate of 40%.

(f) Reflects the preliminary fair value adjustment to deferred revenues acquired from LoopNet. The preliminary fair value represents an amount equivalent to the estimated cost

plus an appropriate profit margin to perform services based on deferred revenue balances of LoopNet as of March 31, 2011.

- (g) Pro forma adjustment to eliminate LoopNet s convertible preferred stock and related accretion expense which will be redeemed in the acquisition.
- (h) To record the issuance of additional CoStar common stock in this offering and the stock portion of the acquisition consideration and to eliminate LoopNet s stockholders equity, as follows (in thousands):

| | nmon stock | A | dditional paid in capital | comp | Other rehensive loss | Т | reasury stock | (acc | Retained earnings cumulated deficit) |
|--|-------------------|----|---------------------------------|------|----------------------------|----|------------------|------|---|
| Eliminate LoopNet, Inc. stockholders equity Estimated deal costs Estimated CoStar common shares | \$ (40) | \$ | (135,172) | \$ | 383 | \$ | 86,227 | \$ | (60,987) (26,000) |
| issued to the public in this offering Estimated CoStar common shares | 37 | | 245,565 | | | | | | |
| issued to LoopNet shareholders | 20 | | 135,339 | | | | | | |
| | \$ 17 | \$ | 245,732 | \$ | 383 | \$ | 86,227 | \$ | (86,987) |

The unaudited pro forma combined and diluted earnings per share for the periods presented are based on the combined and diluted weighted-average shares. The historical basic and diluted weighted average shares of LoopNet were assumed to be replaced by the shares expected to be issued by CoStar as the stock portion of the acquisition consideration and to raise additional capital in this offering of 1.97 million and 3.75 million shares, respectively. Where the pro forma adjustments result in net losses per share any anti-dilutive effects have been eliminated.

Director and officer stock ownership information

The following table provides certain information regarding the beneficial ownership of our common stock as of April 1, 2011, unless otherwise noted, by:

our Chief Executive Officer and President, our Chief Financial Officer and our three most highly compensated executive officers (other than the CEO and CFO) who were serving as executive officers on December 31, 2010, consisting of our three other executive officers;

each of our directors; and

all of our executive officers and our current directors as a group.

| Name and address | Shares beneficially owned(1) | percentage of outstanding shares(1) |
|---|------------------------------|-------------------------------------|
| | | |
| Michael R. Klein(2) | 429,675 | 2.1% |
| Andrew C. Florance(3) | 481,914 | 2.3% |
| Brian J. Radecki(4) | 79,222 | * |
| John Stanfill(5) | 76,324 | * |
| Jennifer L. Kitchen(6) | 40,904 | * |
| Paul Marples(7) | 30,874 | * |
| David Bonderman(8) | 289,667 | 1.4% |
| Michael J. Glosserman(9) | 5,954 | * |
| Warren H. Haber(10) | 124,015 | * |
| Josiah O. Low, III(11) | 41,705 | * |
| Christopher J. Nassetta(12) | 26,690 | * |
| All directors and executive officers as a group (11 people) | 1,626,944 | 7.6% |

- (1) Unless otherwise noted, each listed person s address is c/o CoStar Group, Inc., 1331 L Street, NW, Washington, DC 20005. Beneficial ownership, as determined in accordance with Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act, includes sole or shared power to vote or direct the voting of, or to dispose or direct the disposition of shares, as well as the right to acquire beneficial ownership within 60 days of April 1, 2011, through the exercise of an option or otherwise. Except as indicated in the footnotes to the table, we believe that the persons named in the table have sole voting and dispositive power with respect to their reported shares of common stock. The use of * indicates ownership of less than 1%. As of April 1, 2011, we had 20,814,699 shares of common stock outstanding.
- (2) Includes 19,000 shares issuable upon the exercise of exercisable options within 60 days of April 1, 2011, as well as 4,126 shares of restricted stock that are subject to vesting restrictions.

(3)

Includes 274,355 shares issuable upon the exercise of options exercisable within 60 days of April 1, 2011, as well as 41,185 shares of restricted stock that are subject to vesting restrictions.

- (4) Includes 44,008 shares issuable upon the exercise of options exercisable within 60 days of April 1, 2011, as well as 20,958 shares of restricted stock that are subject to vesting restrictions.
- (5) Includes 24,250 shares issuable upon the exercise of options exercisable within 60 days of April 1, 2011, as well as 45,684 shares of restricted stock that are subject to vesting restrictions.
- (6) Includes 30,032 shares issuable upon the exercise of options exercisable within 60 days of April 1, 2011, as well as 6,034 shares of restricted stock that are subject to vesting restrictions.
- (7) Includes 13,066 shares issuable upon the exercise of options exercisable within 60 days of April 1, 2011, as well as 5,901 shares of restricted stock that are subject to vesting restrictions.
- (8) Includes 18,000 shares issuable upon the exercise of options exercisable within 60 days of April 1, 2011, as well as 4,126 shares of restricted stock that are subject to vesting restrictions.

- (9) Includes 4,572 shares of restricted stock that are subject to vesting restrictions.
- (10) Includes 6,000 shares held by Mr. Haber s spouse and excludes 20,000 shares held by Mr. Haber s adult son for which Mr. Haber disclaims beneficial ownership. Also includes 26,000 shares issuable upon the exercise of options exercisable within 60 days of April 1, 2011, as well as 5,845 shares of restricted stock that are subject to vesting restrictions.
- (11) Includes 1,000 shares held by Mr. Low s spouse for which Mr. Low disclaims beneficial ownership. Also includes 20,000 shares issuable upon the exercise of options exercisable within 60 days of April 1, 2011, as well as 5,845 shares of restricted stock that are subject to vesting restrictions.
- (12) Includes 15,000 shares issuable upon the exercise of options exercisable within 60 days of April 1, 2011, as well as 4,985 shares of restricted stock that are subject to vesting restrictions.

Price range of our common stock and dividends

Our common stock is listed and traded on the Nasdaq Global Select Market under the symbol CSGP. The following table sets forth, for the calendar quarters indicated, the high and low daily closing price per share of our common stock as reported on the Nasdaq Global Select Market. On May 18, 2011, the last practicable trading day prior to the date of this prospectus supplement, there were 20,972,131 shares of our common stock outstanding.

| | High | Low |
|---------------------------------------|----------|----------|
| | | |
| 2008 | | |
| First quarter | \$ 45.31 | \$ 36.55 |
| Second quarter | 51.36 | 44.39 |
| Third quarter | 56.70 | 43.57 |
| Fourth quarter | 45.20 | 27.00 |
| 2009 | | |
| First quarter | 35.93 | 24.23 |
| Second quarter | 40.09 | 31.10 |
| Third quarter | 41.57 | 33.97 |
| Fourth quarter | 44.43 | 38.35 |
| 2010 | | |
| First quarter | 42.97 | 38.22 |
| Second quarter | 45.95 | 38.80 |
| Third quarter | 49.53 | 37.66 |
| Fourth quarter | 57.75 | 48.86 |
| 2011 | | |
| First quarter | 62.89 | 55.58 |
| Second quarter (through May 18, 2011) | 72.84 | 59.96 |

The closing sale price per share of our common stock as of May 18, 2011, the most recent practicable trading day prior to the date of this prospectus supplement, was \$68.58.

We have never declared or paid any cash dividends on our common stock and do not intend to do so for the foreseeable future.

Underwriting

We are offering the shares of common stock described in this prospectus supplement through the underwriters named below. J.P. Morgan Securities LLC is acting as sole book-running manager of the offering and as representative of the underwriters. Under the terms and subject to the conditions contained in an underwriting agreement dated , 2011, we have agreed to sell to the underwriters, and each underwriter has severally agreed to purchase, at the public offering price less the underwriting discounts and commissions set forth on the cover page of this prospectus supplement, the number of shares of common stock listed next to its name in the following table:

Name Number of shares

J.P. Morgan Securities LLC Needham & Company, LLC Stephens Inc. William Blair & Company, L.L.C. JMP Securities LLC

Total 3,750,000

The underwriters are committed to purchase all the shares of common stock offered by us if they purchase any shares. The underwriting agreement also provides that if an underwriter defaults, the purchase commitments of non-defaulting underwriters may be increased or the offering may be terminated.

The underwriters propose to offer the shares of common stock directly to the public at the public offering price set forth on the cover page of this prospectus supplement, and to certain dealers at that price less a concession not in excess of \$ per share. Any such dealers may resell shares to certain other brokers or dealers at a discount of up to \$ per share from the public offering price. After the public offering of the shares, the underwriters may change the offering price and other selling terms. Sales of shares made outside of the United States may be made by affiliates of the underwriters.

The underwriters have an option to buy up to 562,500 additional shares of common stock from us to cover sales of shares by the underwriters which exceed the number of shares specified in the table above. The underwriters have 30 days from the date of this prospectus supplement to exercise this over-allotment option. If any shares are purchased with this over-allotment option, the underwriters will purchase shares in approximately the same proportion as shown in the table above. If any additional shares of common stock are purchased, the underwriters will offer the additional shares on the same terms as those on which the shares are being offered.

The underwriting discount is equal to the public offering price per share of common stock less the amount paid by the underwriters per share of our common stock. The following table shows the per share and total underwriting discounts and commissions we will pay, assuming both no exercise and full exercise of the underwriters option to purchase additional shares.

| | | Without over- allotment exercise | With full over- allotment exercise |
|--------------------|------|--|--|
| Per share Total | | \$ \$ | \$ \$ |
| | S-46 | | |

We estimate that the total expenses of this offering, including registration, filing and listing fees, printing fees and legal and accounting expenses, but excluding the underwriting discounts and commissions, will be approximately \$. We will pay all offering expenses.

A prospectus in electronic format may be made available on the websites maintained by one or more underwriters, or selling group members, if any, participating in the offering. The underwriters may agree to allocate a number of shares to underwriters and selling group members for sale to their online brokerage account holders. Internet distributions will be allocated by the representative to underwriters and selling group members that may make Internet distributions on the same basis as other allocations.

We have agreed with the underwriters that we will not (other than as consideration in respect of the acquisition as provided in the merger agreement) (i) offer, pledge, sell, contract to sell, sell any option or contract to purchase, purchase any option or contract to sell, grant any option, right or warrant to purchase or otherwise transfer or dispose of, directly or indirectly, or file with the SEC a registration statement under the Securities Act relating to, any shares of our common stock or any securities convertible into or exchangeable or exercisable for any shares of our common stock, or publicly disclose the intention to make any offer, sale, pledge, disposition or filing, or (ii) enter into any swap or other agreement that transfers, in whole or in part, any of the economic consequences of ownership of any shares of our common stock or any such other securities (regardless of whether any of these transactions are to be settled by the delivery of shares of our common stock or such other securities, in cash or otherwise), in each case without the prior written consent of J.P. Morgan Securities LLC on behalf of the underwriters, for a period of 90 days after the date of this prospectus supplement, other than (i) the shares of our common stock to be sold hereunder, (ii) shares of our common stock issued upon the exercise of options granted under our existing stock-based incentive plans and (iii) new compensatory grants made under our existing stock-based incentive plans. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if (1) during the last 17 days of the 90-day restricted period, we issue an earnings release or material news or a material event relating to us occurs; or (2) prior to the expiration of the 90-day restricted period, we announce that we will release earnings results during the 16-day period beginning on the last day of the 90-day restricted period, the restrictions described above shall continue to apply until the expiration of the 18-day period beginning on the issuance of the earnings release or the occurrence of the material news or material event.

Our directors and executive officers (other than Josiah O. Low, III, who is not standing for reelection at our annual meeting of stockholders expected to be held on June 2, 2011) have agreed with the underwriters not to, for a period of 90 days after the date of this prospectus supplement, without the prior written consent of J.P. Morgan Securities LLC on behalf of the underwriters, (i) offer, pledge, sell, contract to sell, sell any option or contract to purchase, purchase any option or contract to sell, grant any option, right or warrant to purchase, or otherwise transfer or dispose of, directly or indirectly, any shares of our common stock or any securities convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for our common stock (including, without limitation, common stock or such other securities which may be deemed to be beneficially owned by such directors and executive officers in accordance with the rules and regulations of the SEC and securities which may be issued upon exercise of a stock option or warrant), or publicly disclose the intention to make any offer, sale, pledge or disposition, (ii) enter into any swap or other agreement that transfers, in whole or in part, any of the economic consequences of ownership of our common stock or such other securities, whether any such transaction described in clause (i) or (ii) above is to be settled by delivery of our common stock or such other securities, in cash or otherwise or (iii) make any demand for or

exercise any right with respect to the registration of any shares of our common stock or any security convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for our common stock, in each case other than (A) transfers of shares of our common stock as a bona fide gift or gifts or as a result of testate or intestate succession; (B) in the case of a stock option expiring during the period when the restrictions described in this paragraph continue, sales, exchanges, swaps or other transfers or dispositions of shares of our common stock issuable upon the exercise thereof to us in an amount limited to the amount necessary to cover the exercise price thereof or to satisfy the tax withholding in connection with the exercise thereof; and (C) in the case of restricted stock vesting during the period when the restrictions described in this paragraph continue, sales, exchanges, swaps or other transfers or dispositions of shares of our common stock so vested to the Company in an amount limited to the amount necessary to satisfy the tax withholding in connection with the vesting thereof; provided that in the case of clause (A), each transferee executes and delivers to the representative a lock-up letter in the form of this paragraph and no filing by any party under the Exchange Act or other public announcement is required or is made voluntarily in connection with such transfer (other than a filing on a Form 5 made after the expiration of the 90-day restricted period referred to above). Notwithstanding the foregoing, if (i) during the last 17 days of the 90-day restricted period, we issue an earnings release or material news or a material event relating to us occurs; or (ii) prior to the expiration of the 90-day restricted period, we announce that we will release earnings results during the 16-day period beginning on the last day of the 90-day restricted period, the restrictions described above shall continue to apply until the expiration of the 18-day period beginning on the issuance of the earnings release or the occurrence of the material news or material event.

We have agreed to indemnify the underwriters against certain liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act, or to contribute to payments the underwriters may be required to make in respect of those liabilities.

Our common stock is listed on the Nasdaq Global Select Market under the symbol CSGP.

In connection with this offering, the underwriters may engage in stabilizing transactions, which involves making bids for, purchasing and selling shares of our common stock in the open market for the purpose of preventing or retarding a decline in the market price of the shares of our common stock while this offering is in progress. These stabilizing transactions may include making short sales of the shares of our common stock, which involves the sale by the underwriters of a greater number of shares of our common stock than they are required to purchase in this offering, and purchasing shares of our common stock on the open market to cover positions created by short sales. Short sales may be covered shorts, which are short positions in an amount not greater than the underwriters over-allotment option referred to above, or may be naked shorts, which are short positions in excess of that amount. The underwriters may close out any covered short position either by exercising their over-allotment option, in whole or in part, or by purchasing shares of our common stock in the open market. In making this determination, the underwriters will consider, among other things, the price of shares of our common stock available for purchase in the open market compared to the price at which the underwriters may purchase shares of our common stock through the over-allotment option. To the extent that the underwriters create a naked short position, they will purchase shares of our common stock in the open market to cover the position.

The underwriters have advised us that, pursuant to Regulation M of the Securities Act, they may also engage in other activities that stabilize, maintain or otherwise affect the price of our common stock. These activities may have the effect of raising or maintaining the market price of

our common stock or preventing or retarding a decline in the market price of our common stock, and, as a result, the price of our common stock may be higher than the price that otherwise might exist in the open market. If the underwriters commence these activities, they may discontinue them at any time. The underwriters may carry out these transactions on the Nasdaq Global Select Market, in over the counter market or otherwise.

Certain of the underwriters and their affiliates have provided in the past to us and our affiliates and may provide from time to time in the future certain commercial banking, financial advisory, investment banking and other services in the ordinary course of their business, for which they have received and may continue to receive customary fees and commissions. In addition, from time to time, certain of the underwriters and their affiliates may effect transactions for their own account or the accounts of their customers, and hold on behalf of themselves or their customers, long or short positions in our debt or equity securities or loans, and may do so in the future.

J.P. Morgan Securities LLC is providing financial advisory services to us in connection with the acquisition. In addition, an affiliate of J.P. Morgan Securities LLC has provided us with commitments for a portion of the proposed credit facilities in an aggregate amount of \$452.5 million for application in connection with the acquisition and will act as administrative agent under the proposed credit facilities. If the acquisition is consummated and is financed in part with the net proceeds of this offering, we may correspondingly reduce the amount drawn under the committed term loan portion of the proposed credit facilities on the closing date of the acquisition, and in that event we would receive a corresponding credit against a portion of the amounts paid to J.P. Morgan Securities LLC in connection with this offering.

Other than in the United States, no action has been taken by us or the underwriters that would permit a public offering of the securities offered by this prospectus supplement in any jurisdiction where action for that purpose is required. The securities offered by this prospectus supplement may not be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, nor may this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus or any other offering material or advertisements in connection with the offer and sale of any such securities be distributed or published in any jurisdiction, except under circumstances that will result in compliance with the applicable rules and regulations of that jurisdiction. Persons into whose possession this prospectus supplement comes are advised to inform themselves about and to observe any restrictions relating to the offering and the distribution of this prospectus supplement. This prospectus supplement does not constitute an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer to buy any securities offered by this prospectus supplement in any jurisdiction in which such an offer or a solicitation is unlawful.

This document is only being distributed to and is only directed at (i) persons who are outside the United Kingdom or (ii) investment professionals falling within Article 19(5) of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (Financial Promotion) Order 2005 (the Order) or (iii) high net worth entities, and other persons to whom it may lawfully be communicated, falling with Article 49(2)(a) to (d) of the Order (all such persons together being referred to as relevant persons). The securities are only available to, and any invitation, offer or agreement to subscribe, purchase or otherwise acquire such securities will be engaged in only with, relevant persons. Any person who is not a relevant person should not act or rely on this document or any of its contents.

In relation to each Member State of the European Economic Area that has implemented the Prospectus Directive (each, a Relevant Member State), from and including the date on which the EU Prospectus Directive is implemented in that Relevant Member State (the Relevant

Implementation Date), an offer of securities described in this prospectus supplement may not be made to the public in that Relevant Member State prior to the publication of a prospectus in relation to the shares that has been approved by the competent authority in that Relevant Member State or, where appropriate, approved in another Relevant Member State and notified to the competent authority in that Relevant Member State, all in accordance with the EU Prospectus Directive and the 2010 PD Amending Directive to the extent implemented, except that it may, with effect from and including the Relevant Implementation Date, make an offer of shares to the public in that Relevant Member State at any time:

to any legal entity which is a qualified investor as defined in the EU Prospectus Directive or the 2010 PD Amending Directive if the relevant provision has been implemented;

to fewer than (i) 100 natural or legal persons per Relevant Member State (other than qualified investors as defined in the EU Prospectus Directive or the 2010 PD Amending Directive if the relevant provision has been implemented) or (ii) if the Relevant Member State has implemented the relevant provision of the 2010 PD Amending Directive, 150 natural or legal persons per Relevant Member State (other than qualified investors as defined in the EU Prospectus Directive or the 2010 PD Amending Directive if the relevant provision has been implemented), subject to obtaining the prior consent of the book-running managers for any such offer; or

in any other circumstances falling within Article 3(2) of the EU Prospectus Directive or Article 3(2) of the 2010 PD Amending Directive to the extent implemented.

For the purposes of this provision, the expression an offer of securities to the public in relation to any securities in any Relevant Member State means the communication in any form and by any means of sufficient information on the terms of the offer and the securities to be offered so as to enable an investor to decide to purchase or subscribe for the securities, as the same may be varied in that Member State by any measure implementing the EU Prospectus Directive in that Relevant Member State, the expression EU Prospectus Directive means Directive 2003/71/EC and includes any relevant implementing measure in each Relevant Member State, and the expression 2010 PD Amending Directive means Directive 2010/73/EC.

Certain United States federal income tax considerations

The following is a summary of the material U.S. federal income tax consequences relating to the ownership and disposition of shares of our common stock, as of the date hereof. This summary deals only with shares of our common stock that are held as capital assets within the meaning of Section 1221 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or the Code (generally, property held for investment). This summary does not discuss any U.S. federal tax consequences other than those relating to income taxes (such as estate or gift tax consequences) and does not discuss any state, local or non-U.S. tax consequences. In addition, this summary does not discuss all aspects of U.S. federal income taxation that may be relevant to the ownership or disposition of our common stock by prospective investors in light of their particular circumstances. In particular, except to the extent discussed below, this summary does not address all of the tax consequences that may be relevant to certain types of investors subject to special treatment under U.S. federal income tax laws, such as:

dealers in securities or currencies, brokers, financial institutions, controlled foreign corporations, passive foreign investment companies, regulated investment companies, real estate investment trusts, retirement plans, certain former citizens or long-term residents of the United States, tax-exempt entities, traders in securities that elect to use a mark-to-market method of accounting for their securities holdings or insurance companies;

U.S. Holders (as defined below) of shares of our common stock whose functional currency is not the U.S. dollar;

persons holding shares of our common stock as part of a hedging, integrated, constructive sale, or conversion transaction or a straddle;

entities or arrangements that are treated as partnerships for U.S. federal income tax purposes; or

persons liable for alternative minimum tax.

The discussion below is based upon the provisions of the Code, applicable U.S. Treasury regulations promulgated thereunder, and administrative rulings and judicial decisions as of the date hereof. Those authorities are subject to different interpretations and may be changed, perhaps retroactively, so as to result in U.S. federal income tax consequences different from those discussed below.

If a partnership (or other entity treated as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes) holds shares of our common stock, the tax treatment of a partner in the partnership will generally depend upon the status of the partner and the activities of the partnership. If you are a partner of a partnership holding shares of our common stock, you should consult your tax advisor as to the particular U.S. federal income tax consequences applicable to you.

If you are considering the purchase of shares of our common stock, you should consult your own tax advisors concerning the U.S. federal tax consequences to you and any consequences arising under the laws of any state, local, non-U.S. or other taxing jurisdiction. Each prospective

investor should seek advice based on its particular circumstances from an independent tax advisor.

For purposes of this summary, a U.S. Holder means a beneficial owner of a share of our common stock that is:

an individual who is a citizen or resident of the United States;

a corporation (or any other entity treated as a corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes) created or organized in or under the laws of the United States or any state thereof or the District of Columbia;

an estate the income of which is subject to U.S. federal income taxation regardless of its source; or

a trust if (i) it is subject to the primary supervision of a court within the United States and one or more U.S. persons have the authority to control all substantial decisions of the trust or (ii) it has a valid election in effect under applicable U.S. Treasury regulations to be treated as a U.S. person.

Consequences to U.S. Holders

The following is a summary of the material U.S. federal income tax consequences that will apply to a U.S. Holder of shares of our common stock.

Distributions

If we make a distribution in respect of our common stock, the distribution will be treated as a dividend to the extent it is paid from our current or accumulated earnings and profits, as determined under U.S. federal income tax principles. If the distribution exceeds current and accumulated earnings and profits, the excess will be treated as a nontaxable return of capital that reduces the holder s adjusted tax basis in the common stock to the extent of the holder s adjusted tax basis in that stock. A holder s adjusted basis in our common stock will generally be the cost therefor, subject to certain adjustments. Any remaining excess will be treated as capital gain.

If a U.S. Holder is an individual, dividends received by such holder on or prior to December 31, 2012 generally will be subject to a reduced maximum tax rate of 15% provided certain holding period and other requirements are met. Beginning January 1, 2013, the rate applicable to dividends is scheduled to return to the tax rate generally applicable to ordinary income. If a U.S. Holder is a U.S. corporation, it may be able to claim the deduction allowed to U.S. corporations in respect of dividends received from other U.S. corporations equal to a portion of any dividends received, subject to generally applicable limitations on that deduction. In general, a dividend distribution to a corporate U.S. Holder may qualify for the 70% dividends-received deduction if the U.S. Holder owns less than 20% of the voting power and value of our stock. U.S. Holders should consult their tax advisors regarding the holding period requirements that must be satisfied in order to qualify for the dividends-received deduction and the reduced maximum tax rate on dividends.

Sale, exchange or other taxable disposition of stock

A U.S. Holder will generally recognize capital gain or loss on a sale, exchange or other taxable disposition of our common stock. The U.S. Holder s gain or loss will equal the difference between the amount realized by the U.S. Holder and the U.S. Holder s adjusted tax basis in the stock. The amount realized by the U.S. Holder will include the amount of any cash and the fair market value of any other property received for the stock. Gain or loss recognized by a U.S. Holder on a sale or exchange of stock will be long-term capital gain or loss if the holder held the stock for more than one year. Long-term capital gains of non-corporate taxpayers currently are eligible for reduced rates of taxation. The deductibility of capital losses is subject to certain limitations.

New healthcare legislation

Under the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010, certain U.S. Holders who are individuals, estates or trusts will be required to pay an additional 3.8% tax on, among other things, dividends on and capital gains from the sale or other disposition of stock for taxable years beginning after December 31, 2012. U.S. Holders should consult their tax advisors regarding the effect, if any, of this legislation on their ownership and disposition of our common stock.

Information reporting and backup withholding

We or our paying agent must report annually to U.S. Holders (other than exempt holders) and the Internal Revenue Service, or the IRS, amounts paid to such holders on or with respect to our common stock during each calendar year and the amount of tax, if any, withheld from such payments. A U.S. Holder will be subject to backup withholding on dividends paid on our common stock and proceeds from the sale of our common stock at the applicable rate if the U.S. Holder is not otherwise exempt and (i) the holder fails to provide us or our paying agent with a correct taxpayer identification number, (ii) we or our paying agent are notified by the IRS that the holder provided an incorrect taxpayer identification number, (iii) we or our paying agent are notified by the IRS that the holder failed to properly report payments of interest or dividends or (iv) the holder fails to certify under penalty of perjury that it has provided a correct taxpayer identification number and has not been notified by the IRS that it is subject to backup withholding. A U.S. Holder generally may establish that it is exempt from or otherwise not subject to backup withholding by providing a properly completed IRS Form W-9 to us or our paying agent. Any amounts withheld under the backup withholding rules will generally be allowed as a refund or a credit against a U.S. Holder s U.S. federal income tax liability, provided the required information is properly furnished to the IRS on a timely basis.

Consequences to Non-U.S. Holders

The following is a summary of the material U.S. federal income tax consequences that will apply to a Non-U.S. Holder of shares of our common stock. The term Non-U.S. Holder means a beneficial owner of shares of our common stock that is an individual, corporation, estate or trust for U.S. federal income tax purposes and is not a U.S. Holder.

S-53

Distributions

Distributions on our common stock will constitute dividends to the extent described above in Consequences to U.S. Holders Distributions. Any dividends paid to Non-U.S. Holders with respect to the shares of our common stock will generally be subject to U.S. withholding tax at a 30% rate or such lower rate as specified by an applicable income tax treaty. To receive the benefit of a reduced treaty rate, a Non-U.S. Holder must furnish to us or our paying agent a valid IRS Form W-8BEN (or applicable successor form) certifying such holder s qualification for the reduced rate. This certification must be provided to us or our paying agent prior to the payment of dividends and must be updated periodically. If a Non-U.S. Holder is eligible for a reduced rate of U.S. withholding tax pursuant to an income tax treaty but fails to timely provide the required certification, the holder may obtain a refund or credit of any excess amounts withheld by timely filing an appropriate claim for such refund or credit with the IRS. Dividends that are effectively connected with a Non-U.S. Holder s conduct of a trade or business within the United States are generally not subject to U.S. withholding tax, provided the Non-U.S. Holder furnishes to us or our paying agent a properly executed IRS Form W-8ECI (or applicable successor form) prior to the payment of dividends. Instead, dividends that are effectively connected with a Non-U.S. Holder s conduct of a U.S. trade or business and, where an applicable tax treaty so requires, are attributable to such Non-U.S. Holder s permanent establishment in the United States, are subject to U.S. federal income tax on a net income basis at applicable graduated individual or corporate rates. Any such effectively connected dividends received by a foreign corporation may, under certain circumstances, be subject to an additional branch profits tax at a 30% rate or such lower rate as specified by an applicable income tax treaty. Non-U.S. Holders should consult their tax advisors regarding the potential application of tax treaties and their eligibility for treaty benefits.

Sale, exchange or other taxable disposition of stock

Any gain realized by a Non-U.S. Holder upon the sale, exchange or other taxable disposition of shares of our common stock generally will not be subject to U.S. federal income tax unless:

that gain is effectively connected with such Non-U.S. Holder s conduct of a trade or business in the United States (and, if required by an applicable income tax treaty, is attributable to a U.S. permanent establishment);

the Non-U.S. Holder is an individual who is present in the United States for 183 days or more in the taxable year of that disposition, and certain other conditions are met; or

we are or have been a United States real property holding corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes at any time within the shorter of the five-year period ending on the date of disposition or the period that such Non-U.S. Holder held shares of our common stock and either our common stock was not regularly traded on an established securities market at any time during the calendar year in which the disposition occurs, or the Non-U.S. Holder owns or owned (actually or constructively) more than five percent of the total fair market value of shares of our common stock at any time during the five-year period ending on the date of disposition. We are not, and do not anticipate that we will become, a U.S. real property holding corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

A Non-U.S. Holder described in the first bullet point above will generally be subject to U.S. federal income tax on the net gain derived from the sale under regular graduated U.S. federal income tax rates or such lower rate as specified by an applicable income tax treaty.

A Non-U.S. Holder that is a foreign corporation may, in addition, be subject to a branch profits tax at a 30% rate or a lower rate specified by an applicable income tax treaty. An individual Non-U.S. Holder described in the second bullet point above will generally be subject to a flat 30% U.S. federal income tax on the gain derived from the sale, which may be offset by U.S. source capital losses. If a Non-U.S. Holder is eligible for the benefits of a tax treaty between the United States and its country of residence, any gain described in the second bullet point will be subject to U.S. federal income tax in the manner specified by the treaty and generally will only be subject to such tax if such gain is attributable to a permanent establishment maintained by the Non-U.S. Holder in the United States. To claim the benefit of any applicable tax treaty, a Non-U.S. Holder must properly submit an IRS Form W-8BEN (or suitable successor or substitute form). Non-U.S. Holders should consult their tax advisors regarding the potential application of tax treaties and their eligibility for treaty benefits.

Information reporting and backup withholding

We must report annually to the IRS the amount of dividends or other distributions we pay to you on shares of our common stock and the amount of tax we withhold on these distributions. These information reporting requirements apply even if no withholding was required. Copies of the information returns reporting such distributions and any withholding may also be made available to the tax authorities in the country in which the holder resides under the provisions of an applicable income tax treaty. The United States imposes backup withholding on dividends and certain other types of payments to U.S. persons. A Non-U.S. Holder will not be subject to backup withholding (but may be subject to other withholding as described above) on dividends the holder receives on shares of our common stock if the holder provides proper certification (usually on an IRS Form W-8BEN (or suitable successor or substitute form)) of the holder s status as a non-U.S. person or other exempt status.

Information reporting and backup withholding generally are not required with respect to the amount of any proceeds from the sale of shares of our common stock outside the United States through a foreign office of a foreign broker that does not have certain specified connections to the United States. However, if a Non-U.S. Holder sells shares of our common stock through a U.S. broker or the U.S. office of a foreign broker, the broker will be required to report the amount of proceeds paid to the Non-U.S. Holder to the IRS and also backup withhold on that amount unless the Non-U.S. Holder provides appropriate certification (usually on an IRS Form W-8BEN (or suitable successor or substitute form)) to the broker of the holder s status as a non-U.S. person or other exempt status.

Any amounts withheld under the backup withholding rules will generally be allowed as a refund or a credit against a Non-U.S. Holder s U.S. federal income tax liability provided the required information is properly furnished to the IRS on a timely basis.

Legislation relating to foreign accounts

Certain types of payments made to foreign financial institutions, as defined under those rules, and certain other non-U.S. entities after December 31, 2012 may be subject to withholding tax under certain legislation. The legislation imposes a 30% withholding tax on dividends on, or gross proceeds from the sale or other disposition of, our common stock paid to a foreign financial institution unless the foreign financial institution enters into an agreement with the U.S. Treasury to, among other things, undertake to identify accounts held by certain U.S. persons or U.S.-owned foreign entities, annually report certain information about such accounts, and

withhold 30% on payments to account holders whose actions prevent it from complying with these reporting and other requirements. In addition, the legislation imposes a 30% withholding tax on the same types of payments to a foreign non-financial entity unless the entity certifies that it does not have any substantial U.S. owners or furnishes identifying information regarding each substantial U.S. owner. Under certain circumstances, Non-U.S. Holders may be eligible for refunds or credits of such taxes. Prospective investors should consult their tax advisors regarding this legislation.

The foregoing discussion of material U.S. federal income tax considerations is for general information purposes only and is not tax or legal advice. You should consult your own tax advisor as to the particular tax consequences to you of owning and disposing of our common stock, including the applicability and effect of any U.S. federal, state or local or non-U.S. tax laws, and of any changes or proposed changes in applicable law.

S-56

Validity of the common stock

The validity of the common stock offered hereby will be passed upon for us by Gibson, Dunn & Crutcher LLP, New York, New York. The underwriters have been represented by Cravath, Swaine & Moore LLP, New York, New York.

Experts

Ernst & Young LLP, independent registered public accounting firm, has audited the consolidated financial statements and schedule of CoStar Group, Inc. included in its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2010, as set forth in their report, which is incorporated herein by reference. CoStar Group, Inc. s financial statements and schedule are incorporated herein by reference in reliance on Ernst & Young LLP s report, given on their authority as experts in accounting and auditing.

Ernst & Young LLP, independent registered public accounting firm, has audited the consolidated financial statements and schedule of LoopNet, Inc. included in CoStar Group, Inc. s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 23, 2011, as set forth in their report , which is incorporated herein by reference. LoopNet, Inc. s financial statements and schedule are incorporated herein by reference in reliance on Ernst & Young LLP s report, given on their authority as experts in accounting and auditing.

Where you can find additional information

We are subject to the informational requirements of the Exchange Act and, in accordance with these requirements, we file annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy statements and other information relating to our business, financial condition and other matters with the SEC. We are required to disclose in such reports certain information, as of particular dates, concerning our operating results and financial condition, officers and directors, principal holders of securities, any material interests of such persons in transactions with us and other matters. You may read and copy any of this information filed with the SEC at the SEC s public reference room:

Public Reference Room 100 F Street NE Washington, DC 20549

For information regarding the operation of the Public Reference Room, you may call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. Our filings are also available to the public through the website maintained by the SEC at www.sec.gov or from commercial document retrieval services. Our filings are also available on our website at www.costar.com/investors.aspx. You are encouraged to read the materials that we file with the SEC, which disclose important information about us. This information includes any filing we have made with the SEC under Section 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act. The information on our website or any other website is not incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement or the accompanying prospectus and should not be considered part of this prospectus supplement or the accompanying prospectus or any other filing we make with the SEC.

Incorporation by reference

The SEC allows us to incorporate by reference into this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus, which means that we can disclose important information to you by referring you to another document that we filed separately with the SEC. The information incorporated by reference is deemed to be part of this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus, except for any information superseded by information contained directly in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus. These documents contain important information about us and our financial condition, business and results.

We are incorporating by reference our filings listed below and any additional documents that we may file with the SEC pursuant to Section 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act on or after the date we file this prospectus supplement and prior to the termination of any offering; except we are not incorporating by reference any information furnished (but not filed) under Item 2.02 or Item 7.01 of any Current Report on Form 8-K, unless specifically noted below:

our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010 (including the portions of our proxy statement for our 2011 annual meeting of stockholders incorporated by reference therein);

our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2011;

our Current Reports on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on February 3, 2011, February 24, 2011 (solely with respect to the information filed under Items 1.01, 2.01 and 2.03), April 6, 2011, April 27, 2011 (solely with respect to the information filed under Items 8.01 and 9.01), April 28, 2011 and May 23, 2011 (including the information furnished under Items 7.01 and 9.01); and

the description of our common stock, par value \$0.01 per share, contained in our Form 8-A filed on June 25, 1998 (SEC File Number 000-24531) and any amendment or report filed for the purpose of updating such description.

We will provide, without charge, to each person to whom a copy of this prospectus supplement has been delivered, including any beneficial owner, a copy of any and all of the documents referred to herein that are summarized in this prospectus supplement, if such person makes a written or oral request directed to:

CoStar Group, Inc. 1331 L Street, Northwest Washington DC, 20005 Attention: Investor Relations (877) 285-8321

You can obtain copies of documents incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement, without charge, by requesting them in writing or by telephone from us at CoStar Group, Inc., 1331 L Street, NW, Washington DC, 20005, Attention: Investor Relations, telephone (877) 285-8321. You should rely only on the information incorporated by reference or provided in this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus, and any applicable free writing prospectus. We have not authorized anyone else to provide you with different information. We are not making an offer of these securities in any state where the offer is not permitted. You should not assume that the information in this prospectus supplement, the accompanying

prospectus or any applicable free writing prospectus or any document incorporated by reference is accurate as of any date other than the date of the applicable document.

Our principal executive office is located at 1331 L Street, NW, Washington, DC, 20005 (telephone number (202) 346-6500). We maintain a website at www.costar.com. The information on our website is not part of this prospectus supplement or the accompanying prospectus, nor is it incorporated by reference. Documents available on our website include our (i) Code of Conduct for Directors, (ii) Code of Conduct for Employees and (iii) charters for the Audit, Compensation, and Nominating and Corporate Governance Committees.

S-59

PROSPECTUS

CoStar Group, Inc.

Debt Securities Common Stock Preferred Stock Warrants Depository Receipts Purchase Contracts

We or selling securityholders may, from time to time, offer to sell senior or convertible debt securities, common stock, preferred stock, warrants, depositary receipts or purchase contracts. Each time we or a selling securityholder sells securities pursuant to this prospectus, we will provide a supplement to this prospectus that contains specific information about the offering and the specific terms of the securities offered. You should read this prospectus and the applicable prospectus supplement carefully before you invest in our securities.

Our common stock is listed on the NASDAQ Global Select Market under the symbol CSGP.

Investing in our securities involves a high degree of risk. See the Risk Factors section of our filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission and the applicable prospectus supplement.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of these securities or determined if this prospectus is truthful or complete. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

The date of this prospectus is May 23, 2011

TABLE OF CONTENTS

| | <u>Page</u> |
|---|-------------|
| About This Prospectus | 1 |
| Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Statements | 1 |
| Where You Can Find Additional Information | 3 |
| Incorporation by Reference | 3 |
| Our Company | 4 |
| <u>Use of Proceeds</u> | 4 |
| Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges | 5 |
| Description of Debt Securities | 5 |
| Description of Common Stock | 13 |
| Description of Preferred Stock | 16 |
| Description of Other Securities | 16 |
| Plan of Distribution | 16 |
| <u>Experts</u> | 16 |
| Validity of the Securities | 16 |

You should rely only on the information contained or incorporated by reference in this prospectus and in any accompanying prospectus supplement or in any related free writing prospectus. We have not authorized any other person to provide you with different information with respect to this offering. This document may only be used where it is legal to sell these securities. You should only assume that the information in this prospectus or in any prospectus supplement is accurate as of the date on the front of those documents. Our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects may have changed since that date. We are not making an offer of these securities in any state where the offer is not permitted.

ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS

This prospectus is part of an automatic shelf registration statement that we filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, or SEC, as a well-known seasoned issuer as defined in Rule 405 under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the Securities Act). By using an automatic shelf registration statement, we may, at any time and from time to time, sell securities under this prospectus in one or more offerings in an unlimited amount. As allowed by the SEC rules, this prospectus does not contain all of the information included in the registration statement. For further information, we refer you to the registration statement, including its exhibits. Statements contained in this prospectus about the provisions or contents of any agreement or other document are not necessarily complete. If the SEC s rules and regulations require that an agreement or document be filed as an exhibit to the registration statement, please see that agreement or document for a complete description of these matters.

This prospectus provides you with a general description of the securities we may offer. Each time we use this prospectus to offer securities, we will provide you with a prospectus supplement that will describe the specific amounts, prices and terms of the securities being offered. The prospectus supplement may also add, update or change information contained in this prospectus. Therefore, if there is any inconsistency between the information in this prospectus and the prospectus supplement, you should rely on the information in the prospectus supplement.

To understand the terms of our securities, you should carefully read this document and the applicable prospectus supplement. Together they give the specific terms of the securities we are offering. You should also read the documents we have referred you to under Where You Can Find Additional Information below for information about us and our financial statements. You can read the registration statement and exhibits on the SEC s website or at the SEC as described under Where You Can Find Additional Information.

Unless otherwise indicated or the context otherwise requires, references in this prospectus to Registrant, Company, wo or our are to CoStar Group, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries, and CoStar refers to CoStar Group, Inc., a Delaware corporation. Unless otherwise indicated or the context otherwise requires, references in this prospectus to LoopNet are to LoopNet, Inc., a Delaware corporation, and its consolidated subsidiaries, and the acquisition refers to our proposed acquisition of LoopNet.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain parts of this prospectus and any prospectus supplement, and the documents incorporated by reference herein, contain forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the Exchange Act). Forward-looking statements include information that is not purely historic fact and include, without limitation, statements concerning our financial outlook for 2011 and beyond, our possible or assumed future results of operations generally, and other statements and information regarding assumptions about our revenues, EBITDA, adjusted EBITDA, non-GAAP net income, non-GAAP net income per share, fully diluted net income, combined financial metrics related to the LoopNet acquisition, taxable income, cash flow from operating activities, available cash, operating costs, amortization expense, intangible asset recovery, net income per share, diluted net income per share, weighted-average outstanding shares, capital and other expenditures, effective tax rate, equity compensation charges, future taxable income, purchase amortization, financing plans, geographic expansion, acquisitions, contract renewal rate, capital structure, contractual obligations, legal proceedings and claims, our database, database growth, services and facilities, employee relations, future economic performance, our ability to liquidate or realize our long-term investments, management s plans, goals and objectives for future operations, and growth and markets for our stock.

Our forward-looking statements are also identified by words such as believes, expects, thinks, anticipates, intends estimates, potential or similar expressions. You should understand that these forward-looking statements are estimates reflecting our judgment, beliefs and expectations, not guarantees of future performance. They are subject to a number of assumptions, risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those expressed or implied in the forward-looking statements. The

following important factors, in addition to those discussed or referred to under the heading Risk Factors, and other unforeseen events or circumstances, could affect our future results and could cause those results or other outcomes to differ materially from those expressed or implied in our forward-looking statements:

commercial real estate market conditions;

general economic and political conditions, natural disasters, health concerns, and technological developments;

volatility in the stock markets;

our ability to identify, acquire and integrate acquisition candidates; expected cost savings or other synergies from the LoopNet acquisition may not be fully realized or may take longer to realize than expected;

the businesses of CoStar and LoopNet may not be combined successfully or in a timely and cost-efficient manner;

the possibility that the LoopNet acquisition does not close, including, but not limited to, due to the failure to obtain approval of LoopNet s stockholders or the failure to obtain governmental approval;

business disruption relating to the LoopNet acquisition may be greater than expected;

failure to obtain any required financing for the LoopNet acquisition on favorable terms;

changes or consolidations within the commercial real estate industry;

our ability to retain customers;

our ability to attract new clients;

our ability to sell additional services to existing clients;

our ability to integrate our U.S. and international product offerings;

competition from products and services offered by our competitors;

foreign currency fluctuations;

our ability to obtain any required financing on favorable terms;

global credit market conditions affecting investments;

our ability to continue to expand successfully;

our ability to effectively penetrate the market for retail real estate information and gain acceptance in that market;

our ability to control costs;

litigation;

| release of new and upgraded services by us or our competitors; data quality; development of our sales force; employee retention; |
|--|
| development of our sales force; employee retention; |
| employee retention; |
| |
| |
| technical problems with our services; |
| managerial execution; |
| changes in relationships with real estate brokers and other strategic partners; |

legal and regulatory issues; and

successful adoption of and training on our services.

Accordingly, you should not place undue reliance on forward-looking statements, which speak only as of, and are based on information available to us on, the date of this Registration Statement. All subsequent written and oral forward-looking statements attributable to us or any person acting on our behalf are expressly qualified in their entirety by the cautionary statements contained or referred to in this section. We do not undertake any obligation to update any such statements or release publicly any revisions to these forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date of this Registration Statement or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events.

Forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance. They involve risks, uncertainties and assumptions, including the risk factors referred to above. Our future performance and actual results may differ materially from those expressed in forward-looking statements. Many of the factors that will determine these results are beyond our ability to control or predict. Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date that they are made, and we undertake no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

We are subject to the informational requirements of the Exchange Act, and, in accordance with these requirements, we file annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy statements and other information relating to our business, financial condition and other matters with the SEC. We are required to disclose in such reports certain information, as of particular dates, concerning our operating results and financial condition, officers and directors, principal holders of securities, any material interests of such persons in transactions with us and other matters. You may read and copy any of this information filed with the SEC at the SEC s public reference room:

Public Reference Room 100 F Street NE Washington, DC 20549

For information regarding the operation of the Public Reference Room, you may call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. Our filings are also available to the public through the website maintained by the SEC at *www.sec.gov* or from commercial document retrieval services. Our filings are also available on our website at *www.costar.com/investors.aspx*. You are encouraged to read the materials that we file with the SEC, which disclose important information about us. This information includes any filing we have made with the SEC under Section 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act. The information on our website or any other website is not incorporated by reference in the prospectus and should not be considered part of this prospectus or any other filing we make with the SEC.

INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE

The SEC allows us to incorporate by reference into this prospectus, which means that we can disclose important information to you by referring you to another document that we filed separately with the SEC. The information incorporated by reference is deemed to be part of this prospectus, except for any information superseded by information contained directly in this prospectus. These documents contain important information about us and our financial condition, business and results.

We are incorporating by reference our filings listed below and any additional documents that we may file with the SEC pursuant to Section 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act on or after the date we file this prospectus and prior to the termination of any offering; except we are not incorporating by reference any

information furnished (but not filed) under Item 2.02 or Item 7.01 of any Current Report on Form 8-K, unless specifically noted below for such report or in a prospectus supplement:

our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010 (including the portions of our proxy statement for our 2011 annual meeting of stockholders incorporated by reference therein);

our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2011;

our Current Reports on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on February 3, 2011, February 24, 2011 (solely with respect to the information filed under Items 1.01, 2.01 and 2.03), April 6, 2011, April 27, 2011 (solely with respect to the information filed under Items 8.01 and 9.01), April 28, 2011 and May 23, 2011 (including the information furnished under Items 7.01 and 9.01); and

the description of our common stock, par value \$0.01 per share, contained in our Form 8-A filed on June 25, 1998 (SEC File Number 000-24531), and any amendment or report filed for the purpose of updating such description.

We will provide, without charge, to each person to whom a copy of this prospectus has been delivered, including any beneficial owner, a copy of any and all of the documents referred to herein that are summarized in this prospectus, if such person makes a written or oral request directed to:

CoStar Group, Inc. 1331 L Street, NW Washington, DC 20005 Attention: Investor Relations (877) 285-8321

YOU SHOULD RELY ONLY ON THE INFORMATION CONTAINED OR INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE IN THIS PROSPECTUS AND ANY ACCOMPANYING PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT, OR TO WHICH WE HAVE REFERRED YOU, IN MAKING YOUR DECISIONS WHETHER TO INVEST IN THE SECURITIES. WE HAVE NOT AUTHORIZED ANYONE TO PROVIDE YOU WITH INFORMATION THAT DIFFERS FROM THAT CONTAINED IN THIS PROSPECTUS AND ANY ACCOMPANYING PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT. THIS PROSPECTUS IS DATED MAY 23, 2011. YOU SHOULD NOT ASSUME THAT THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS PROSPECTUS IS ACCURATE AS OF ANY DATE OTHER THAN THAT DATE, UNLESS WE OTHERWISE NOTE IN THIS PROSPECTUS OR ANY ACCOMPANYING PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT.

OUR COMPANY

We are a leading provider of information and analytic services to the commercial real estate industry in the United States, United Kingdom and parts of France. Since our founding in 1987, we have provided commercial real estate professionals with critical knowledge. We offer the most comprehensive commercial real estate database in the industry. We provide value to our clients by supplying proprietary data that, combined with our analytic methods, creates essential decision-making support tools for professionals in the commercial real estate industry. Our diverse suite of products and services is tailored to serve the needs of professionals working with commercial property types, including office, retail, industrial, commercial land, multi-family and mixed-use properties, and hospitality.

The principal trading market for CoStar s common stock (NASDAQ: CSGP) is the Nasdaq Global Select Market. Our principal executive office is located at 1331 L Street, NW, Washington, DC 20005, telephone number (202) 346-6500.

We maintain a website at www.costar.com. The information on our website is not part of this prospectus nor is it incorporated by reference.

USE OF PROCEEDS

We intend to use the net proceeds from the sale of the securities to fund all or a portion of the costs of any strategic acquisitions we determine to pursue in the future, to finance the growth of our business and for

working capital and other general corporate purposes. General corporate purposes may include repayment of debt, additions to working capital, capital expenditures, investments in our subsidiaries, possible acquisitions and the repurchase, redemption or retirement of securities, including our common stock. The net proceeds may be temporarily invested or applied to repay short-term or revolving debt prior to use.

RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES

The following table sets forth our historical ratios of earnings to fixed charges for the periods indicated. This information should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and the accompanying notes incorporated by reference in this prospectus.

| | Three | | | | | |
|-------------------------------------|-------------------|-------|--------------------------|-------|-------|-------|
| | Months | | | | | |
| | Ended | | | | | |
| | March 31, 2011 | | Years Ended December 31, | | | |
| | | 2010 | 2009 | 2008 | 2007 | 2006 |
| Ratios of earnings to fixed charges | 9.2x | 19.4x | 30.2x | 31.8x | 20.1x | 16.6x |

Earnings available for fixed charges represent earnings before income taxes, noncontrolling interests and fixed charges excluding capitalized interest, net of amortization, reduced by undistributed earnings of our less than 50% owned affiliates. Fixed charges represent interest expense, amortization of debt discount and expenses, capitalized interest, plus that portion of rental expense deemed to be the equivalent of interest. Interest expense excludes interest related to uncertain tax positions, which has been included in the provision for income taxes.

DESCRIPTION OF DEBT SECURITIES

The following is a general description of the debt securities that we may offer from time to time. The particular terms of the debt securities offered by any prospectus supplement and the extent, if any, to which the general provisions described below may apply to those securities will be described in the applicable prospectus supplement. We may also sell hybrid securities that combine certain features of debt securities and other securities described in this prospectus. As you read this section, please remember that the specific terms of a debt security as described in the applicable prospectus supplement will supplement and may modify or replace the general terms described in this section. If there are any differences between the applicable prospectus supplement and this prospectus, the applicable prospectus supplement will control. As a result, the statements we make in this section may not apply to the debt security you purchase.

In this description of debt securities, the words we, us or our refer only to CoStar Group, Inc. and not to any of our subsidiaries. The registered holder of any debt security will be treated as the owner of it for all purposes. Only registered holders will have rights under the applicable indenture.

General

The debt securities that we may offer will be either senior debt securities or subordinated debt securities. Any senior debt securities will be issued under an indenture, which we refer to as the senior indenture, to be entered into between us and the trustee named in the applicable prospectus supplement. Any subordinated debt securities will be issued under a different indenture, which we refer to as the subordinated indenture, to be entered into between us and the trustee named in the applicable prospectus supplement. We refer to both the senior indenture and the subordinated

indenture as the indentures, and to each of the trustees under the indentures as a trustee. In addition, the indentures may be supplemented or amended as necessary to set forth the terms of the debt securities issued under the indentures. You should read the indentures, including any amendments or supplements, carefully to fully understand the terms of the debt securities. The forms of the indentures have been filed as exhibits to the registration statement of which this prospectus is a part. The terms of the debt securities will include those stated in the indentures and those made part of the indentures by reference to the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended.

Any senior debt securities that we may issue will be our unsubordinated obligations. They will rank equally with each other and all of our other unsubordinated debt, unless otherwise indicated in the applicable prospectus supplement. Any subordinated debt securities that we may issue will be subordinated in right of payment to the prior payment in full of our senior debt. See Ranking. The subordinated debt securities will rank equally with each other, unless otherwise indicated in the applicable prospectus supplement. We will indicate in each applicable prospectus supplement, as of the most recent practicable date, the aggregate amount of our outstanding debt that would rank senior to the subordinated debt securities.

The indentures will not limit the amount of debt securities that can be issued thereunder and will provide that debt securities of any series may be issued thereunder up to the aggregate principal amount that we may authorize from time to time. Unless otherwise provided in the applicable prospectus supplement, the indentures will not limit the amount of other indebtedness or securities that we may issue. We may issue debt securities of the same series at more than one time and, unless prohibited by the terms of the series, we may reopen a series for issuances of additional debt securities without the consent of the holders of the outstanding debt securities of that series. All debt securities issued as a series, including those issued pursuant to any reopening of a series, will vote together as a single class.

Reference is made to the prospectus supplement for the following and other possible terms of each series of the debt securities with respect to which this prospectus is being delivered:

the title of the debt securities;

any limit upon the aggregate principal amount of the debt securities of that series that may be authenticated and delivered under the applicable indenture, except for debt securities authenticated and delivered upon registration of transfer of, or in exchange for or in lieu of, other debt securities of that series;

the date or dates on which the principal and premium, if any, of the debt securities of the series is payable;

the rate or rates, which may be fixed or variable, at which the debt securities of the series shall bear interest or the manner of calculation of such rate or rates, if any, including any procedures to vary or reset such rate or rates, and the basis upon which interest will be calculated if other than that of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months:

the place or places where the principal of and interest, if any, on the debt securities of the series shall be payable, where the debt securities of such series may be surrendered for registration of transfer or exchange and where notices and demands to or upon us with respect to the debt securities of such series and the applicable indenture may be served, and the method of such payment, if by wire transfer, mail or other means if other than as set forth in the applicable indenture;

the date or dates from which such interest shall accrue, the dates on which such interest will be payable or the manner of determination of such dates, and the record date for the determination of holders to whom interest is payable on any such dates;

any trustees, authenticating agents or paying agents with respect to such series, if different from those set forth in the applicable indenture;

the right, if any, to extend the interest payment periods or defer the payment of interest and the duration of such extension or deferral;

if applicable, the period or periods within which, the price or prices at which and the terms and conditions upon which, debt securities of the series may be redeemed, in whole or in part, at our option;

our obligation, if any, to redeem, purchase or repay debt securities of the series pursuant to any sinking fund or analogous provisions, including payments made in cash in anticipation of future sinking fund obligations, or at the option of a holder thereof and the period or periods within which, the price or prices at which, and the terms and conditions upon which, debt securities of the series shall be redeemed, purchased or repaid, in whole or in part, pursuant to such obligation;

the form of the debt securities of the series, including the form of the trustee s certificate of authentication for such series;

if other than denominations of \$1,000 or integral multiples of \$1,000 in excess thereof, the denominations in which the debt securities of the series shall be issuable;

the currency or currencies in which payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on, debt securities of the series shall be payable;

if the principal amount payable at the stated maturity of debt securities of the series will not be determinable as of any one or more dates prior to such stated maturity, the amount which will be deemed to be such principal amount as of any such date for any purpose, including the portion of the principal amount thereof that will be due and payable upon declaration of acceleration of the maturity thereof or upon any maturity other than the stated maturity or that will be deemed to be outstanding as of any such date, or, in any such case, the manner in which such deemed principal amount is to be determined;

the terms of any repurchase or remarketing rights;

if the debt securities of the series shall be issued in whole or in part in the form of a global security or securities, the type of global security to be issued; the terms and conditions, if different from those contained in the applicable indenture, upon which such global security or securities may be exchanged in whole or in part for other individual securities in definitive registered form; the depositary for such global security or securities; and the form of any legend or legends to be borne by any such global security or securities in addition to or in lieu of the legends referred to in the indenture;

whether the debt securities of the series will be convertible into or exchangeable for other securities, and, if so, the terms and conditions upon which such debt securities will be so convertible or exchangeable, including the initial conversion or exchange price or rate or the method of calculation, how and when the conversion price or exchange ratio may be adjusted, whether conversion or exchange is mandatory, at the option of the holder or at our option, the conversion or exchange period, and any other provision in addition to or in lieu of those described herein:

any additional restrictive covenants or events of default that will apply to the debt securities of the series, or any changes to the restrictive covenants set forth in the applicable indenture that will apply to the debt securities of the series, which may consist of establishing different terms or provisions from those set forth in the applicable indenture or eliminating any such restrictive covenant or event of default with respect to the debt securities of the series;

any provisions granting special rights to holders when a specified event occurs;

if the amount of principal or any premium or interest on debt securities of a series may be determined with reference to an index or pursuant to a formula, the manner in which such amounts will be determined;

any special tax implications of the debt securities, including provisions for original issue discount securities, if offered;

whether and upon what terms debt securities of a series may be defeased if different from the provisions set forth in the applicable indenture;

with regard to the debt securities of any series that do not bear interest, the dates for certain required reports to the trustee;

whether the debt securities of the series will be issued as unrestricted securities or restricted securities, and, if issued as restricted securities, the rule or regulation promulgated under the Securities Act in reliance on which they will be sold;

any guarantees on the debt securities, and the terms and conditions upon which any guarantees may be released or terminated;

the provisions, if any, relating to any security provided for the debt securities of the series;

any depositaries, interest rate calculation agents, exchange rate calculation agents or other agents with respect to debt securities of such series if other than those appointed in the applicable indenture;

if the debt securities are subordinated debt securities, the subordination terms of the debt securities; and

any and all additional, eliminated or changed terms that shall apply to the debt securities of the series, including any terms that may be required by or advisable under United States laws or regulations, including the Securities Act and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder, or advisable in connection with the marketing of debt securities of that series.

We will comply with Section 14(e) under the Exchange Act, to the extent applicable, and any other tender offer rules under the Exchange Act that may then be applicable, in connection with any obligation to purchase debt securities at the option of the holders thereof. Any such obligation applicable to a series of debt securities will be described in the prospectus supplement relating thereto.

Unless otherwise described in a prospectus supplement relating to any debt securities, there will be no covenants or provisions contained in the indentures that may afford the holders of debt securities protection in the event that we enter into a highly leveraged transaction.

The statements made hereunder relating to the indentures and any debt securities that we may issue are summaries of certain provisions thereof and are qualified in their entirety by reference to all provisions of the indentures and the debt securities and the descriptions thereof, if different, in the applicable prospectus supplement.

Payments on the Debt Securities

Principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the debt securities will be payable at the office or agency maintained by us for such purposes; *provided* that all payments of principal, premium, if any, and interest with respect to the debt securities represented by one or more global securities registered in the name of or held by The Depository Trust Company (DTC) or its nominee will be made through the facilities of DTC. Until otherwise designated by us, our office or agency will be the office of the trustee maintained for such purpose.

Paying Agent and Registrar for the Debt Securities

The trustee will initially act as paying agent and registrar. We may change the paying agent or registrar without prior notice to the holders, and we or any of our subsidiaries may act as paying agent or registrar.

Transfer and Exchange

A holder may transfer or exchange debt securities in accordance with the applicable indenture. Holders will be required to pay all taxes due on transfer. We will not be required to transfer or exchange any debt security selected for redemption or repurchase. Also, we will not be required to transfer or exchange any debt security for a period of 15 days before a selection of debt securities to be redeemed or repurchased.

Ranking

Senior Debt Securities

Any series of senior debt securities will be our general obligations that rank senior in right of payment to all existing and future indebtedness that is expressly subordinated in right of payment to the senior debt securities. Any series of senior debt securities will rank equally in right of payment with all of our existing and future liabilities that are not so subordinated. Any series of senior unsecured debt securities will be effectively subordinated to all of our secured indebtedness (to the extent of the value of the assets securing such indebtedness) and liabilities of our subsidiaries that do not guarantee the series of senior debt securities.

Subordinated Debt Securities

We will set forth in the applicable prospectus supplement the terms and conditions, if any, upon which any series of subordinated debt securities is subordinated to debt securities of another series or to our other indebtedness. The terms will include a description of:

the indebtedness ranking senior to the debt securities being offered;

the restrictions, if any, on payments to the holders of the debt securities being offered while a default with respect to the senior indebtedness is continuing; and

the provisions requiring holders of the debt securities being offered to remit some payments to the holders of senior indebtedness.

Redemption

If specified in the applicable prospectus supplement, we may redeem the debt securities of any series, as a whole or in part, at our option on and after the dates and in accordance with the terms established for such series, if any, in the applicable prospectus supplement. If we redeem the debt securities of any series, we also must pay accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the date of redemption on such debt securities.

Certain Covenants

Merger, Consolidation or Sale of Assets

We may not, directly or indirectly: (1) consolidate or merge with or into or wind up into another person; or (2) sell, assign, transfer, convey or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of our properties or assets, in one or more related transactions, to another person; unless:

- (1) either: (a) we are the surviving person; or (b) the person formed by or surviving any such consolidation or merger or to which such sale, assignment, transfer, conveyance or other disposition has been made is a corporation, limited liability company or limited partnership organized or existing under the laws of the United States, any state of the United States, the District of Columbia or any territory thereof (such person, hereinafter referred to as the Successor Company);
- (2) the Successor Company expressly assumes all of or our obligations under the debt securities and the applicable indenture;
- (3) immediately after such transaction no default or Event of Default exists; and
- (4) we shall have delivered to the trustee a certificate from a responsible officer and an opinion of counsel, each stating that such consolidation, merger or transfer and such amendment or supplement (if any) comply with the applicable indenture.

The Successor Company will succeed to, and be substituted for us under the applicable indenture and the debt securities.

Reports

So long as any debt securities are outstanding, we shall file with the trustee, within 15 days after we file with the SEC, copies of our annual reports and of the information, documents and other reports (or copies of such portions of any of the forgoing as the SEC may from time to time by rules and regulations prescribe) that we may be required to file with the SEC pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Exchange Act. We shall be deemed to have complied with the previous sentence to the extent that such information, documents and reports are filed with the SEC via EDGAR, or any successor electronic delivery procedure. Delivery of such reports, information and documents to the trustee is for informational purposes only and the trustee s receipt of such shall not constitute constructive notice of any information contained therein or determinable from information contained therein, including our compliance with any of our covenants under the applicable indenture (as to which the trustee is entitled to rely exclusively on officer s certificates).

Events of Default and Remedies

The following will be Events of Default with respect to debt securities of a particular series, except to the extent provided in the supplemental indenture or resolution of our board of directors pursuant to which a series of debt securities is issued:

- (1) we default in payment when due and payable, upon redemption, acceleration or otherwise, of principal of, or premium, if any, on the debt securities;
- (2) we default in the payment when due of interest on or with respect to the debt securities and such default continues for a period of 30 days;
- (3) we default in the performance of, or breach any covenant, warranty or other agreement contained in the applicable indenture (other than a default in the performance or breach of a covenant, warranty or agreement which is specifically dealt with in clauses (1) or (2) above) and such default or breach continues for a period of 90 days after the notice specified below;
- (4) certain events involving our bankruptcy, insolvency or reorganization; or
- (5) any other Event of Default provided in the applicable supplemental indenture or resolution of the board of directors under which such series of securities is issued or in the form of security for such series.

A default under one series of debt securities issued under the indenture will not necessarily be a default under another series of debt securities under the indenture. The trustee may withhold notice to the holders of a series of debt securities issued under such indenture of any default or Event of Default (except in any payment on the debt securities of such series) if the trustee considers it in the interest of the holders of the debt securities of that series to do so.

If an Event of Default (other than an Event of Default specified in clause (4) above) for a series of debt securities shall occur and be continuing, the trustee or the holders of at least 25% in principal amount of outstanding debt securities of that series may declare the principal of and accrued interest on such debt securities to be due and payable by notice in writing to us and the trustee specifying the respective Event of Default and that it is a notice of acceleration (Acceleration Notice), and the same shall become immediately due and payable. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if an Event of Default specified in clause (4) above occurs and is continuing, then all unpaid principal of, and premium, if any, and accrued and unpaid interest on all of the outstanding debt securities shall ipso facto become and be immediately due and payable without any declaration or other act on the part of the trustee or any holder of the debt securities.

The holders of a majority in principal amount of the debt securities of such series then outstanding may waive any existing default or Event of Default and its consequences, except a default in the payment of the principal of or interest on such debt securities.

Holders of debt securities of any series may not enforce the applicable indenture or the debt securities of that series except as provided in the applicable indenture and under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended. Subject to the provisions of the applicable indenture relating to the duties of the trustee, the trustee will be under no obligation to exercise any of its rights or powers under the indenture at the request, order or direction of any of the holders of the debt securities of any series, unless such holders have offered to the trustee reasonable indemnity. Subject to all provisions of the applicable indenture and applicable law, the holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of a series of the then outstanding debt securities of such series issued under such indenture will have the right to direct the time, method and place of conducting any proceeding for any remedy available to the trustee or exercising any trust or

power conferred on the trustee.

We will be required to deliver to the trustee annually a statement regarding compliance with the indenture.

No Personal Liability of Directors, Officers, Employees and Stockholders

No director, officer, employee, incorporator or stockholder of the Company, will have any liability for any obligations of the Company under the debt securities, the indenture, or for any claim based on, in respect of, or by reason of, such obligations or their creation. Each holder of debt securities by accepting a debt security waives and releases all such liability. The waiver and release are part of the consideration for issuance of the debt securities. The waiver may not be effective to waive liabilities under the federal securities laws.

Satisfaction and Discharge of Indenture

The indenture shall cease to be of further effect with respect to a series of debt securities when either:

- (1) we have delivered to the trustee for cancellation all outstanding securities of such series, other than any securities that have been destroyed, lost or stolen and that have been replaced or paid as provided in the indenture;
- (2) all outstanding securities of such series have become due and payable or are by their terms to become due and payable within one year or are to be called for redemption within one year under arrangements satisfactory to the trustee for the giving of notice of redemption, and we shall have irrevocably deposited with the trustee as trust funds the entire amount, in funds or governmental obligations, or a combination thereof, sufficient, in the opinion of a nationally recognized firm of independent public accountants, to pay at maturity or upon redemption all securities of such series; or
- (3) we have properly fulfilled any other means of satisfaction and discharge that may be set forth in the terms of the securities of such series.

In each case, we will also pay all other sums payable by us under the indenture with respect to the securities of such series.

Defeasance

The term defeasance means the discharge of some or all of our obligations under the indenture. If we deposit with the trustee funds or government securities sufficient to make payments on any series of debt securities on the dates those payments are due and payable, then, at our option, either of the following will occur:

- (1) we will be discharged from obligations with respect to the debt securities of such series (legal defeasance); or
- (2) we will no longer have any obligation to comply with the restrictive covenants under the indenture, and the related events of default will no longer apply to us (covenant defeasance).

If we defease any series of debt securities, the holders of the defeased debt securities of such series will not be entitled to the benefits of the indenture under which such series was issued, except for our obligation to register the transfer or exchange of the debt securities of such series, replace stolen, lost or mutilated debt securities or maintain paying agencies and hold moneys for payment in trust. In the case of covenant defeasance, our obligation to pay principal, premium and interest on the debt securities of such series will also survive. We will be required to deliver to the trustee an opinion of counsel that the deposit and related defeasance would not cause the holders of the debt securities of such series to recognize income, gain or loss for federal income tax purposes. If we elect legal defeasance, that opinion of counsel must be based upon a ruling from the United States Internal Revenue Service or a change in law to that effect.

Amendment, Supplement and Waiver

Except as provided in the next two succeeding paragraphs, an indenture or the debt securities of any series issued thereunder may be amended or supplemented with the consent of the holders of at least a majority in principal amount of the debt securities of each series at the time outstanding that is affected voting as a single class (including, without limitation, consents obtained in connection with a purchase of, or tender

offer or exchange offer for, debt securities), and any existing default or compliance with any provision of the indenture or the debt securities of any series issued thereunder may be waived with the consent of the holders of a majority in principal amount of each series of debt securities at the time outstanding that is affected voting as a single class (including, without limitation, consents obtained in connection with a purchase of, or tender offer or exchange offer for, debt securities).

Without the consent of each holder affected thereby, an amendment or waiver may not (with respect to any debt securities held by a non-consenting holder):

- (1) reduce the amount of debt securities of any series whose holders must consent to an amendment, supplement or waiver:
- (2) reduce the rate of or change the time for payment of interest on the debt securities of any series;
- (3) reduce the principal or change the stated maturity of any debt securities of any series;
- (4) reduce any premium payable on the redemption of any debt security or change the time at which any debt security may or must be redeemed;
- (5) make payments on any debt security payable in currency other than as originally stated in such debt security;
- (6) impair the holder s right to institute suit for the enforcement of any payment on any debt security;
- (7) make any change in the percentage of principal amount of the debt securities of any series necessary to waive compliance with certain provisions of the indenture under which such debt securities were issued or to make any change in this provision for modification; or
- (8) waive a continuing default or event of default regarding any payment on the debt securities of any series.

Notwithstanding the preceding, without the consent of any holder of debt securities, we and the trustee may amend or supplement an indenture or the applicable debt securities issued thereunder:

- (1) to cure any ambiguity, omission, defect or inconsistency;
- (2) to provide for the assumption of our obligations under the indenture by a successor upon any merger, consolidation or transfer of substantially all of our assets, as applicable;
- (3) to provide for uncertificated debt securities in addition to or in place of certificated debt securities;
- (4) to provide any security for or guarantees of the debt securities or for the addition of an additional obligor on the debt securities:
- (5) to comply with any requirement to effect or maintain the qualification of the indenture under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended, if applicable;
- (6) to add covenants that would benefit the holders of any outstanding series of debt securities or to surrender any of our rights under the indenture;
- (7) to add additional Events of Default with respect to any series of debt securities;

- (8) to change or eliminate any of the provisions of the indenture, provided that any such change or elimination shall not become effective with respect to any outstanding debt security of any series created prior to the execution of such supplemental indenture which is entitled to the benefit of such provision;
- (9) to provide for the issuance of and establish forms and terms and conditions of a new series of debt securities;
- (10) to permit or facilitate the defeasance and discharge of the debt securities;

- (11) to issue additional debt securities of any series; provided that such additional debt securities have the same terms as, and be deemed part of the same series as, the applicable series of debt securities to the extent required under the indenture;
- (12) to make any change that does not adversely affect the rights of any holder of outstanding debt securities in any material respect; or
- (13) to evidence and provide for the acceptance of appointment by a successor trustee with respect to the debt securities of one or more series and to add to or change any of the provisions of the indenture as shall be necessary to provide for or facilitate the administration of the trust by more than one trustee.

Concerning the Trustee

If an Event of Default occurs and is continuing, the trustee will be required to use the degree of care and skill of a prudent man in the conduct of his own affairs. The trustee will become obligated to exercise any of its powers under the indenture at the request of any of the holders of any debt securities issued under the indenture only after those holders have furnished the trustee indemnity reasonably satisfactory to it.

If the trustee becomes a creditor of ours, it will be subject to limitations in the indenture on its rights to obtain payment of claims or to realize on certain property received for any such claim, as security or otherwise. The trustee is permitted to engage in other transactions with us. If, however, it acquires any conflicting interest, it must eliminate such conflict, resign or obtain an order from the SEC permitting it to remain as trustee.

Governing Law

The indentures and the debt securities will be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of New York.

DESCRIPTION OF COMMON STOCK

The following description of our share capital is a summary. This summary is not complete and is subject to the complete text of our certificate of incorporation and bylaws, each as amended to date. Our certificate of incorporation and bylaws, each as amended, are incorporated by reference as exhibits to the registration statement of which this prospectus forms a part.

Common Stock

We are authorized to issue 30,000,000 shares of common stock, par value \$0.01 per share. As of May 18, 2011, we had 20,972,131 outstanding shares of common stock.

All outstanding shares of common stock are, and the shares offered hereby upon issuance and sale will be, fully paid and non-assessable.

Voting and Other Rights

Each stockholder of record is entitled to one vote for each outstanding share of common stock owned by him on every matter properly submitted to the stockholders for their vote. Our bylaws provide that directors will be elected by a plurality of votes cast at a meeting of stockholders by the stockholders entitled to vote in the election and, except as otherwise required by law, whenever any corporate action, other than the election of directors is to be taken, it shall be

authorized by a majority of the votes cast at a meeting of stockholders by the stockholders entitled to vote thereon.

Distribution

The holders of our common stock are entitled to receive ratably such dividends as are declared by the board of directors out of funds legally available therefor. In the event of our liquidation, dissolution or winding

up, holders of common stock have the right to a ratable portion of assets remaining after payment of liabilities. Holders of common stock have neither preemptive rights nor rights to convert their common stock into any other securities and are not subject to future calls or assessments by us. There are no redemption or sinking fund provisions applicable to our common stock.

Number and Classification of Directors

Our certificate of incorporation provides that the number of directors on our board will be fixed from time to time by a majority of the total number of authorized directors. Our certificate of incorporation sets the minimum number of directors at two and our bylaws further provide that the number of members of the board will not exceed ten. Our board of directors currently consists of seven members.

Our bylaws provide that our stockholders may, at any special meeting the notice of which shall state that it is called for that purpose, remove, with or without cause, any director.

Any vacancy on our board of directors which occurs between annual meetings will be filled only by a majority vote of the remaining directors then in office, even if less than a quorum. However, whenever the holders of one or more classes or series of preferred stock have the right, voting separately, to elect directors, the election, term of office, filling of vacancies, removal and other features of such directorships will be governed by the terms of resolutions adopted by our board of directors.

We do not have a classified board. Our certificate of incorporation provides that the directors are elected at each annual meeting of stockholders to hold office until their successors have been duly elected and qualified, or until they sooner resign, are removed or become disqualified.

Section 203 of Delaware General Corporation Law

Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law (DGCL) prohibits certain transactions between a Delaware corporation and an interested stockholder, which is defined as a person who, together with any affiliates or associates of such person, beneficially owns, directly or indirectly, 15% or more of the outstanding voting shares of a Delaware corporation. This provision prohibits certain business combinations (defined broadly to include mergers, consolidations, sales or other dispositions of assets having an aggregate value in excess of 10% of the consolidated assets of the corporation, and certain transactions that would increase the interested stockholder s proportionate share ownership in the corporation) between an interested stockholder and a corporation for a period of three years after the date the interested stockholder becomes an interested stockholder, unless (i) the business combination or the transaction which resulted in the stockholder becoming an interested stockholder is approved by the board of directors prior to the date the interested stockholder becomes an interested stockholder, (ii) the interested stockholder acquired at least 85% of the voting stock of the corporation (other than stock held by directors who are also officers or by certain employee stock plans) in the transaction in which it becomes an interested stockholder or (iii) the business combination is approved by a majority of the board of directors and by the affirmative vote of 662/3% of the outstanding voting stock that is not owned by the interested stockholder.

Although stockholders may elect to exclude a corporation from Section 203 s restrictions, our certificate of incorporation and bylaws do not exclude us from Section 203 s restrictions. The provisions of Section 203 may encourage companies interested in acquiring us to negotiate in advance with the board of directors, since Section 203 does not require stockholder approval for a corporation to engage in any business combination with any interested stockholder, if the board of directors prior to the time that such stockholder became an interested stockholder approved either the business combination or the transaction in which the stockholder became an interested stockholder. Business combinations are discussed more fully in the paragraph above.

Certain Antitakeover Provisions

Our certificate of incorporation contains provisions that may have the effect of discouraging a third party from making an acquisition proposal for the Company. Our certificate of incorporation, among other things, (i) permits the board of directors, but not our stockholders, to fill vacancies and newly created directorships on the board of directors and (ii) provides that any action required or permitted to be taken by our stockholders must be effected at

an annual or special meeting of stockholders and not by any consent in writing by such stockholders. Such provisions would make the removal of incumbent directors more difficult and time-consuming and may have the effect of discouraging a tender offer or other takeover attempt not previously approved by the board of directors.

Except as otherwise provided in our certificate of incorporation or by the DGCL, our bylaws provide that special meetings of our stockholders may be called at any time by the Chairman of the board of directors or our President, and will be called by our President or Secretary at the request in writing of a majority of our board of directors. Special meetings of stockholders may not be called by our stockholders in their capacity as such. Any special meeting of the stockholders shall be held on such date and at such time as our board of directors or the officer calling the meeting may designate.

The provisions prohibiting stockholder action by written consent and prohibiting stockholders from calling a special meeting could delay consideration of a stockholder proposal until our next annual meeting. This would prevent the holders of our stock from unilaterally using the written consent procedure to take stockholder action. Moreover, a stockholder cannot force stockholder consideration of a proposal over the opposition of the Chairman and the board of directors by calling a special meeting of stockholders.

Amendments

We can amend, alter, change or repeal any provision of our certificate of incorporation in the manner prescribed by the DGCL.

Our board of directors is authorized to make, alter or repeal our bylaws. In addition to any vote of the holders of any class or series of stock required by law or by the certificate of incorporation to amend or repeal our bylaws, the affirmative vote of the holders of at least 662/3% of our voting stock, voting as a single class, is required to adopt, amend or repeal any provision of our bylaws inconsistent with certain provisions related to special meetings, stockholder proposals, indemnification and bylaws amendment.

Indemnification and Limitation of Liability

Our certificate of incorporation provides that we shall, subject to certain limitations, indemnify our directors and officers against expenses (including attorneys—fees, judgments, fines and certain settlements) actually and reasonably incurred by them in connection with any suit or proceeding to which they are a party so long as they acted in good faith and in a manner reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the corporation, and, with respect to a criminal action or proceeding, so long as they had no reasonable cause to believe their conduct to have been unlawful. Our bylaws further provide that we may indemnify employees and agents against such expenses, in circumstances similar to those described above with respect to indemnification for directors and officers in our certificate of incorporation. We have entered into indemnification agreements with each of our directors and certain of our officers, which clarify and enhance our rights and obligations and the rights and obligations of our directors and officers with respect to indemnification of such persons.

Section 102 of the DGCL permits a Delaware corporation to include in its certificate of incorporation a provision eliminating or limiting a director s liability to a corporation or its stockholders for monetary damages for breaches of fiduciary duty. DGCL Section 102 provides, however, that liability for breaches of the duty of loyalty, acts or omissions not in good faith or involving intentional misconduct, or knowing violation of the law, and the unlawful purchase or redemption of stock or payment of unlawful dividends or the receipt of improper personal benefits cannot be eliminated or limited in this manner. Our certificate of incorporation includes a provision which eliminates, to the fullest extent permitted, director liability for monetary damages for breaches of fiduciary duty.

Pursuant to our certificate of incorporation and bylaws and Section 145 of the DGCL, we may purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any director, officer, employee or agent of the corporation to the extent permitted by Section 145 of the DGCL. We have obtained directors—and officers—liability and corporate reimbursement insurance covering all of our and our subsidiaries—officers and directors and providing for the reimbursement of amounts paid by us or our subsidiaries to directors and officers pursuant to indemnification arrangements, subject to certain deductibles and coinsurance provisions.

Listing, Transfer Agent and Registrar

Our common stock is listed for trading on the NASDAQ Global Select Market. The transfer agent and registrar for our common stock is American Stock Transfer and Trust Company.

DESCRIPTION OF PREFERRED STOCK

We are authorized to issue 2,000,000 shares of preferred stock in one or more series. As of May 18, 2011, we had no outstanding shares of preferred stock. The rights, preferences, privileges and restrictions, including dividend rights, voting rights, terms of redemption, retirement, sinking fund provisions, liquidation preferences, conversion rights and exchange rights, if any, of the preferred stock of each series will be fixed or designated pursuant to a certificate of designation adopted by our board of directors or a duly authorized committee thereof.

DESCRIPTION OF OTHER SECURITIES

We will set forth in the applicable prospectus supplement a description of any warrants, depositary shares or purchase contracts issued by us that may be offered pursuant to this prospectus.

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

We may sell the securities offered pursuant to this prospectus in any of the following ways:

directly to one or more purchasers;

through agents;

through underwriters, brokers or dealers; or

through a combination of any of these methods of sale.

We will identify the specific plan of distribution, including any underwriters, brokers, dealers, agents or direct purchasers and their compensation in a prospectus supplement.

In addition, to the extent this prospectus is used by any selling securityholder to resell common stock or other securities, information with respect to the selling securityholder and the plan of distribution will be contained in a supplement to this prospectus, in a post-effective amendment or in filings we make with the SEC under the Exchange Act that are incorporated by reference.

EXPERTS

Ernst & Young LLP, independent registered public accounting firm, has audited the consolidated financial statements and schedule of CoStar Group, Inc. included in its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2010, as set forth in their report, which is incorporated herein by reference. CoStar Group, Inc. s financial statements and schedule are incorporated herein by reference in reliance on Ernst & Young LLP s report, given on their authority as experts in accounting and auditing.

Ernst & Young LLP, independent registered public accounting firm, has audited the consolidated financial statements and schedule of LoopNet, Inc. included in CoStar Group, Inc. s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 23, 2011, as set forth in their report incorporated therein, which is incorporated herein by reference. LoopNet,

Inc. s financial statements and schedule are incorporated herein by reference in reliance on Ernst & Young LLP s report, given on their authority as experts in accounting and auditing.

VALIDITY OF THE SECURITIES

Gibson, Dunn & Crutcher LLP, New York, New York, will pass upon the validity of the securities that may be offered pursuant to this prospectus.

3,750,000 shares

Common Stock

CoStar Group, Inc.

Prospectus Supplement

J.P. Morgan

Needham & Company, LLC Stephens Inc. William Blair & Company JMP Securities

May , 2011

No action is being taken in any jurisdiction outside the United States to permit a public offering of the common stock or possession or distribution of this prospectus supplement in that jurisdiction. Persons who come into possession of this prospectus supplement in jurisdictions outside the United States are required to inform themselves about and to observe any restrictions as to this offering and the distribution of this prospectus supplement applicable to that jurisdiction.